
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

Regular Meeting of the 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

DECEMBER 6, 2010 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 





 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 





 

 

      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

December 6, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Edward Petreaca of the Seventh Day Adventist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 1 

a) Proclamation Presentation Honoring Judge Michael A. Martone ......................... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 
for Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson 1 

E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson 2 

E-3 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 
for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks 3 

E-4 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks, Suite B 3 



F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 4 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 5 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 5 

H-1  No Postponed Items 5 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 5 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 5 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 5 

I-4 Cancelation of December 20, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting 5 

I-5 2010/11 Budget Amendment No. 1 5 

I-6 Bid Waiver – Michigan CAT Mini Excavator 6 

I-7 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – Cities of Rochester and Oak 
Park 6 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 7 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: Proclamation to Honor Judge Michael A. 
Martone 7 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 8 



a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore 
Lawn and Yard Services ....................................................................................... 8 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow 
Removal Services – Fire Stations and Training Center ........................................ 8 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to 
Expend City Funds – MMRMA Risk Avoidance Program Grant – TASER 
Purchase .............................................................................................................. 9 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award-Sole Bidder – Vehicle Wash 
Services ................................................................................................................ 9 

J-5 Application to Transfer Interest and Location of MLCC Class C License No. 9432-
2010 from Rockers, Inc. located at 1461 N. Perry, Pontiac, Michigan to Square 
Lake Diner, LLC to be located at 6024 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan, pending 
final inspections 9 

J-6 Application for New SDM License with On Premise Seating for Target Corporation 10 

J-7 Application to Add Space (additional indoor seating) for RCSH, LLC (Ruth’s Chris 
Steak House) 11 

J-8 Application to Transfer Stock Interest for Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. – Somerset 
Mall 11 

J-9 Application to Transfer Stock Interest for Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. – Oakland 
Mall 12 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None submitted 13 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 13 

a) Contract to Transfer Ownership and Responsibility – ALOeTERRA Solar 
House ................................................................................................................. 13 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 14 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 14 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 14 



N. REPORTS 14 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 14 

a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2010 ........................................... 14 
b) Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2010 .............................................. 14 
c) Planning Commission/Final – November 9, 2010 .............................................. 14 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 14 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 14 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Michelle Bray-Cotton, Thanking the Clerk’s Office 
for their Assistance in her Community Service Assignment ............................... 14 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 14 

N-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2010 14 

N-6  Communication: State of Michigan-Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of  
the Detroit Edison Company–Case No. U-15806 14 

N-7  Memorandum: Niles-Barnard House Progress Report 14 

N-8  Memorandum: City Council Filing Deadline New State Law Implication 14 

N-9  Memorandum: Certification of Edward Kempen Citizen Initiative Petition – Addition 
to the Troy City Ordinance 14 

N-10  Memorandum: Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File 
Number: Z-236) 14 

N-11  Memorandum: Response to Council Member Mary Kerwin’s Inquiries About 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as Related to Salaries and Fringe 
Benefits 14 

O. STUDY ITEMS 14 

O-1  Snow and Ice Control Policy 14 

O-2  Goals and Objectives 16 



P. CLOSED SESSION: 16 

P-1  Raquel Chidiac v. City of Troy et. al. 16 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 16 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 16 

None scheduled 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, December 13, 2010 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, December 20, 2010 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, January 10, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 

Monday, January 24, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 
Monday, January 31, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 

Monday, February 7, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 
Monday, February 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 16 
Monday, February 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 16 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, January 17, 2011 @ 6:00 PM Special Meeting ....................................... 16 
Monday, January 24, 2011 after Regular Meeting Special Meeting ...................... 16 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Edward Petreaca of the Seventh Day Adventist Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of        at the Regular 
City Council Meeting of Monday, December 6, 2010 due to       . 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 
 

a) Proclamation Presentation Honoring Judge Michael A. Martone 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 950 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1172, Parcel # 88-20-35-126-
018, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
December 6, 2010, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172, Parcel # 88-20-35-126-018; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Silk Route Global, LLC, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 
48083-1172, for six (6) years, after completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on December 6, 
2010, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route 
Global, LLC, at 950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 

GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC, 
at 950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172 shall not substantially impede the operation of the 

City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of 
the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the 
City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC, Inc., at 950 
Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172, Parcel # 88-20-35-126-018, for personal property for a 

term of six (6) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of 
Agreement between the City of Troy and Silk Route Global, LLC, and payment of the 
application fee established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 

EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Silk Route Global, LLC; a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 3 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 

Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 1957 Crooks, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-042, in 
accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks, Suite B 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
December 6, 2010, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
1957 Crooks, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-042; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by P3 North America, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI 
48084, for two (2) years, after completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on December 6, 
2010, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North 
America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI 48084 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 

GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 4 - 

at 1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI 48084 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 

Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks 
Ste B, Troy MI. 48084, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-042, for personal property for a term of two (2) 

years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between 
the City of Troy and Silk Route Global, LLC, and payment of the application fee established in 
accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 

EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and P3 North America, Inc.; a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 

Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 

Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 
(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 
minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

 City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

 Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 5 - 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 

b)  City Council Appointments/Confirmation: None Scheduled 
 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

I-3 Request for Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, Raquel Chidiac v. 
City of Troy et. al. as permitted by MCL15.268 (e), Pending Litigation. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-4 Cancelation of December 20, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the Regular City Council meeting of 
December 20, 2010. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

I-5 2010/11 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2010/11 Budget Amendment No. 

1 as submitted; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

I-6 Bid Waiver – Michigan CAT Mini Excavator 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan CAT of Shelby Township has been providing for the rental of a 
CAT304CCR for the last seven (7) months to complete a manhole rebuilding project in the 
Southeastern Oakland County Sanitary Sewer District;  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue to use the mini excavator to complete other rehabilitation 
projects in the Section 35 Water Main Replacement Project and the Evergreen – Farmington 
Sanitary Sewerage District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to the excavator’s ease of use and being less intrusive to the surrounding 
area, the timeframe to re-tap a resident’s water service is shortened;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the 

City’s best interest to WAIVE formal bidding procedures and AUTHORIZE the purchase of a 
CAT304CCR mini excavator from Michigan CAT of Shelby Township for an estimated total cost 
of $46,303.88, which includes a discount of $12,775.00 for rental payments made to date.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-7 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – Cities of Rochester and Oak 

Park 
 

a) Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Rochester 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for 
the City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to the City of Rochester; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to execute the agreement; a copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 7 - 

Yes: 
No: 

 

b) Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Oak Park 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for 
the City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to the City of Oak Park; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to execute the agreement; a copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting of November 22, 2010 as submitted. 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: Proclamation to Honor Judge Michael A. 
Martone 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 8 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the City of Troy: Proclamation to 
Honor Judge Michael A. Martone. 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, On December 7, 2009, Troy City Council awarded contracts for seasonal 
requirements of Lawn and Yard Services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low total bidders, Green Meadows 
Lawnscape of Sterling Heights, as primary contractor, and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow of 
Roseville, as secondary contractor, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 

October 15, 2009; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
(Resolution #2009-12-368-I4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Green Meadows Lawnscape and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow have agreed to 
exercise the one-year option to renew their contracts under the same pricing, terms and 
conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts with Green Meadows Lawnscape and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow to 
provide seasonal requirements of Lawn and Yard Services for Troy residents using the Home 
Chore Program under the same prices, terms and conditions as their original contracts to 
expire December 31, 2011.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal 

Services – Fire Stations and Training Center 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, On January 25, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a contract for seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the City’s Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training 
Center with an option to renew for two (2) additional seasons to the low bidder, Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 

opened December 21, 2009; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting (Resolution #2010-01-026 I-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co has agreed to exercise first option to 
renew their contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 9 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the first option 
to renew the contract with Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson to provide 
seasonal requirements of snow removal services for the City’s Fire Stations and Police/Fire 
Training Center under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring April 15, 2011. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds – MMRMA Risk Avoidance Program Grant – TASER Purchase 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Police Department to 
receive a Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) Risk Avoidance Program 

(RAP) Grant and EXPEND funds for the purchase of TASER equipment from the sole source 
provider, Michigan TASER Distributing, for an estimated total cost of $41,483.37; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Police department 
budget to receive the grant funding equal to 50% of the cost for thirty (30) TASERS and a 
training suit estimated at $12,212.50. 

 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award-Sole Bidder – Vehicle Wash 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a two-year contract for exterior only 
Vehicle Wash Services with an option to renew for two additional years to the sole bidder, Pro 
Enterprise Inc, dba Pro Car Wash, for Items # 1 and #3 at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened November 10, 2010; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting for an estimated annual cost of $14,526.00, to expire December 31

st
, 

2012; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the contract 

CONTINGENT ON the contractor’s submission of properly executed bid and proposal 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.    

 

J-5 Application to Transfer Interest and Location of MLCC Class C License No. 9432-

2010 from Rockers, Inc. located at 1461 N. Perry, Pontiac, Michigan to Square 

Lake Diner, LLC to be located at 6024 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan, pending 

final inspections 
 

 a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS FOR APPROVAL Square Lake 
Diner, LLC to Transfer Interest and Location of MLCC Class C License No. 9432-2010 from 
Rockers, Inc. located at 1461 N. Perry, Pontiac, Michigan to Square Lake Diner, LLC to be 
located at 6024 Rochester Road, Troy, MI, Oakland County {MLCC Request #567112}, “above 

all others”; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document; a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 

 b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Square Lake Diner, LLC to Transfer Interest and Location of MLCC Class C License No. 
9432-2010 from Rockers, Inc. located at 1461 N. Perry, Pontiac, Michigan to Square Lake 
Diner, LLC to be located at 6024 Rochester Road, Troy, MI, Oakland County {MLCC Request 

#567112}, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document; a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-6 Application for New SDM License with On Premise Seating for Target Corporation 
 

 a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS FOR APPROVAL Target Corporation 
for a New SDM License with On Premise Seating, and new Direct-Connection-2 located at 
1301 Coolidge Highway, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #556906} “above all 

others”; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document; a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 

 b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Target Corporation for a New SDM license with On Premise Seating, and new Direct-
Connection-2 located at 1301 Coolidge Highway, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 11 - 

Request #556906} and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the 

document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-7 Application to Add Space (additional indoor seating) for RCSH, LLC (Ruth’s Chris 

Steak House) 
 

a) Add Space (additional indoor seating) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS FOR APPROVAL RCSH (Ruth’s 
Chris Steak House) Operations, LLC to Add Space to 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed 
Business With Dance Permit located at 755 West Big Beaver Road, Suite 151, Troy, MI 48084, 

Oakland County {MLCC Request #530151}; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 

Clerk to EXECUTE the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 

b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with RCSH (Ruth’s Chris Steak House) Operations, LLC to Add Space to 2009 Class C and 
SDM Licensed Business With Dance Permit located at 755 West Big Beaver Road, Suite 151, 

Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #530151} and hereby AUTHORIZES the 

Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-8 Application to Transfer Stock Interest for Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. – Somerset 

Mall 
 

a) Transfer All Stock Interest 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. (A New York Corporation) to 
Transfer All Stock Interest In 2005 Licensing Year In 2010 Resort Class C Licensed Business 
issued under MCL 436.1531(2), located at 2752 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, wherein sole stockholder, The May Department Stores Company (A Delaware 
Corporation) transfers 249,084,436 shares of stock to new stockholder, Milan Acquisition, LLC 
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company) formerly known as Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 12 - 

Corporation) through merger, on August 30, 2005; and by dropping Milan Acquisition Corp. (A 
Delaware Corporation) as stockholder through transfer of 249,084,436 shares of stock to new 
stockholder, Macy’s Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) formerly known as Federated Department 
Stores, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation), on August 30, 2005 {MLCC Req. 322719} be 

CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 

  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. (A New York Corporation) to Transfer All Stock 
Interest In 2005 Licensing Year In 2010 Resort Class C Licensed Business issued under MCL 
436.1531(2), located at 2752 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, 
wherein sole stockholder, The May Department Stores Company (A Delaware Corporation) 
transfers 249,084,436 shares of stock to new stockholder, Milan Acquisition, LLC (A Delaware 
Limited Liability Company) formerly known as Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware Corporation) 
through merger, on August 30, 2005; and by dropping Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware 
Corporation) as stockholder through transfer of 249,084,436 shares of stock to new 
stockholder, Macy’s Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) formerly known as Federated Department 
Stores, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation), on August 30, 2005 {MLCC Req. 322719}, and the 

Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document; a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-9 Application to Transfer Stock Interest for Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. – Oakland 

Mall 
 

a) Transfer All Stock Interest 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. (A New York Corporation) to 
Transfer All Stock Interest In 2005 Licensing Year In 2010 Class C Licensed Business, located 
at 500 West Fourteen Mile Road, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, wherein sole stockholder, 
The May Department Stores Company (A Delaware Corporation) transfers 249,084,436 shares 
of stock to new stockholder, Milan Acquisition, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) 
formerly known as Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware Corporation) through merger, on 
August 30, 2005; and by dropping Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware Corporation) as 
stockholder through transfer of 249,084,436 shares of stock to new stockholder, Macy’s Inc. (A 
Delaware Corporation) formerly known as Federated Department Stores, Inc. (A Delaware 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 13 - 

Corporation), on August 30, 2005 {MLCC Req. 322719} be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. (A New York Corporation) to Transfer All Stock 
Interest In 2005 Licensing Year In 2010 Class C Licensed Business, located at 500 West 
Fourteen Mile Road, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, wherein sole stockholder, The May 
Department Stores Company (A Delaware Corporation) transfers 249,084,436 shares of stock 
to new stockholder, Milan Acquisition, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) formerly 
known as Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware Corporation) through merger, on August 30, 
2005; and by dropping Milan Acquisition Corp. (A Delaware Corporation) as stockholder 
through transfer of 249,084,436 shares of stock to new stockholder, Macy’s Inc. (A Delaware 
Corporation) formerly known as Federated Department Stores, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation), 
on August 30, 2005 {MLCC Req. 322719}, and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  
 

a) Contract to Transfer Ownership and Responsibility – ALOeTERRA Solar House 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 14 - 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 

a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2010 
b) Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2010 
c) Planning Commission/Final – November 9, 2010 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation from Michelle Bray-Cotton, Thanking the Clerk’s Office for their 
Assistance in her Community Service Assignment 

 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 

N-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2010 
 

N-6  Communication: State of Michigan-Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of 

 the Detroit Edison Company–Case No. U-15806 
 

N-7  Memorandum: Niles-Barnard House Progress Report 
 

N-8  Memorandum: City Council Filing Deadline New State Law Implication 
 

N-9  Memorandum: Certification of Edward Kempen Citizen Initiative Petition – Addition 

to the Troy City Ordinance 
 

N-10  Memorandum: Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File 

Number: Z-236) 
 

N-11  Memorandum: Response to Council Member Mary Kerwin’s Inquiries About 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as Related to Salaries and Fringe 

Benefits 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  Snow and Ice Control Policy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 15 - 

WHEREAS, Continuing reductions in the taxable value of real estate are adversely affecting 
the City of Troy’s operating revenues; and 
 
WHEREAS, This reduction means significant reduced revenues for fiscal years 2011, 2012, 
and 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy adopted a three-year budget which eliminates the funds for the 
2011/12 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road Commission for Oakland County 
(RCOC) and the City of Troy for snow and ice control for the following Priority I and Priority II 
County roads: 

 Adams 

 Big Beaver 

 Crooks 

 Dequindre 

 John R 

 Livernois 

 Long Lake 

 Maple 

 South Boulevard ; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Streets and Drains Division of the Department of Public Works will lose ten 
employees in the 2011/12 budget;  
 
WHEREAS, Historic City of Troy snow and ice control procedures provided for a high level of 
service which ensured clearing to bare pavement within 24 hours after a four-inch snow event 
on City and RCOC major roads;  
 
WHEREAS, The RCOC standards for snow and ice control for RCOC major roads ensure that 
roads are treated within two to four days after a four-inch snow event, but this does not mean 
plowed to bare pavement;  
 
WHEREAS, On October 4, 2010 the Troy City Council approved the 2010/11 Winter 
Maintenance Agreement between the RCOC and the City of Troy for snow and ice control of 
the Priority I and Priority II County roads listed above;  
 
WHEREAS, Application of the City of Troy snow and ice control procedures and the RCOC 
would create a problematic situation if City of Troy local roads are cleared before the RCOC 
major roads are cleared of snow and ice; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends that the snow and ice control procedures be 
amended to provide a uniform level of service to City of Troy and RCOC major roads; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Department of Public Works to amend the City of Troy snow and ice control procedures to 
provide season long uniform level service to the City of Troy roads and RCOC major roads, 
specifically clearing all roads within 72 hours after a four inch snow event. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2010 

 

- 16 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

O-2  Goals and Objectives  
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Raquel Chidiac v. City of Troy et. al.  

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
None scheduled 

 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, December 13, 2010 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, December 20, 2010 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, January 10, 2011 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, January 24, 2011 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, January 31, 2011 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, February 7, 2011 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, February 21, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 

Monday, February 28, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, January 17, 2011 @ 6:00 PM ............................................................. Special Meeting 

Monday, January 24, 2011 after Regular Meeting ............................................ Special Meeting 
 



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR JUDGE MICHAEL A. MARTONE 

WHEREAS, Michael A. Martone was first elected to Troy and Clawson’s 52-4 District Court in 1992 and reelected without opposition in 1998 and 
again in 2004. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from Wayne State University and his Juris Doctorate from Michigan State University, 
Detroit College of Law; and  

WHEREAS, The community has been in constant change over the years, but Judge Martone has maintained a distinguished record of 
accomplishment, judicial integrity, character, service and excellence to all he has served. Judge Martone's professional career and much of his 
personal time has been dedicated to helping America's youth avoid problems and deal successfully with the challenges that they face in today's 
society. His frequent use of 'creative sentences' and his establishment of the Courageous Decisions Program, a nationally acclaimed alcohol 
intervention program, has raised awareness of the dangers of drinking and driving and underage binge drinking all across America. Since its 
inception in 1993, more than 225,000 students in 30 states have participated in this highly successful, award-winning program; and  

WHEREAS, On April 20, 1999, in a first of its kind broadcast, Judge Martone presented this program, via satellite to every school in North 
America. Judge Martone is a faculty member at the Michigan Judicial Institute and served as both lead faculty and as a special presenter at the 
National Judicial College at the University of Nevada where his program has been established as part of the college's curriculum. It is also part of 
SADD's national "2000 by 2000" initiative and both the 1997 and 2000 MADD National Youth Summits; and  

WHEREAS, Judge Martone and the Courageous Decisions Program have been featured on NBC's Today Show, ABC's Good Morning 
America, CBS's Early Show, MSNBC's Today's People, CNN's Newsstand and on National Public Radio's the Todd Mundt Show. In 2008, 
Mothers Against Drunk Driving (MADD) SE Michigan created the annual Courage First Life Savers Award, named in honor of Judge Martone's 
Courage First Foundation and presented him with the inaugural award; and  

WHEREAS, Judge Martone has been the recipient of the Harvard University John F. Kennedy School of Government 100 Most Innovative 
Programs in All of Federal, State, Local and Tribal Government Award for his Courageous Decisions Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, Over the years, Judge Martone has volunteered with Troy Families for Safe Homes, Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of 
Drug and Alcohol Abuse and the Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence.  In 2006, Judge Martone was selected as the Distinguished Citizen 
of the Year and an Oakland County Q2 Award winner. He has also been a soccer and basketball coach, youth mentor at St. Thomas More, and 
active with the Boy Scouts of America; and 

WHEREAS, The most important aspects in Judge Martone’s life is his family, wife of 32 years Martha Rose, & sons Jonathan and James; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Michael A. Martone is respected nation-wide, not merely for the justice that characterizes his courtroom, but for the ways in 
which he works to keep our community safe and our kids on the right path. Judge Martone’s innovative crime and substance abuse prevention 
programs have attracted national media attention and have been adopted by courts and schools all over the United States. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its appreciation and sincere 
gratitude to Judge Michael A. Martone for his many contributions to the betterment of the City during his tenure as 52-4 District Court Judge; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management and the citizens of the City of Troy, 
extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Michael during his retirement years.  His influence and contributions will remain alive 
in our hearts and will impact each of us as we journey into the future. 
  
Presented the 6th day of December 2010. 
 

 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
C-01a



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          December 6, 2010                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Silk 

Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson 
 
 
Background: 
 
  Silk Route Global, LLC, is expanding its operations into Troy, at 950 Stephenson.  As part of their 
application for incentives from MEGA, a local contribution is required.  As such, they have applied for 
tax abatement, under the new City Council Tax Abatement Policy (attached).  They intend to 
purchase computer equipment valued at $200,000.  The will also add 40 new jobs to the 13 existing 
jobs they have.   
 
  They would qualify for an Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 6 years. 
 
  In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District must first be established, as the City 
Council has not designated all non-residential areas to be IDD’s.  This is the reason for the back to 
back Public Hearings. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The projected amount of the investment is $200,000.  Over the 6 year life of the abatement, the 
estimated total taxes would be $2,909.08, of which $914.79 would be City Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $1,454.54, of which $457.40 would 
be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box

bartholotl
Text Box
E-01



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
  City Council goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this application. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the district, 
and granting the tax abatement for the subsequent Public Hearing.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may establish the IDD (and approve the tax abatement).  Or, City Council may choose 
to not establish a district at this site.  In which case, the Council must then deny any tax abatement. 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\SilkRoute\Memo IDD 12.06.10 



Michigan Department of Treasury 
1012 (Rev. 5-07) 

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate 
Issued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. Filing fs mandata;'. 

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) v..ith the cieri< of the 
local government unit The State Tax Commission (STC) requires two complete sets (one original and one coPYJ. One copy is retained 
by the clerk. If yeu have any questions regarding the completion of this Ionn or would Uke to request an informational packet, call (517) 
373-3272. 

To be completed by Clerk of Local Government Untt 

Signature of Clerk 

APPUCANT INFORMATION 

All boxes must be completed. 

~-';C;;;;;;;;.;y:-";;;;;;iAP;;u;:;;;'m;;;;:t;;Ji;;;;;;;:;P;;;Mi~;;;;;;;;;~;;;:~- r··~··lb:·Stan-d~--in-~-$1na1 Cj~ifJCat!on (SIC) Code ~ Sec. 2(10} (4 or 6 Digit c~~j"· 
Silk Route Global LLC 541511 
.. 1c. Facility Address (City, State, ZIP Code) (real and/or personal property Iocatlon) : .. 1d. CityffownshipNUIage (indicate \\1;ich) ...... ···~···1·e-.--couc:":;-ty,--------J 
950 Stephenson Hwy., Troy, MI 48083 •City of Troy Oakland 
.. 2. Type Of Approval: Reqoested j .. 33.. School DistrictV'Jhere facilrty is located : .. 3b. School Code 

~ New (Sec. 2(4» D Transrer (1 copy only) •Troy, MI 63150
D SpeCUlative Building (sec. 3(B)} D Rehab!fttation (Sec. S(1)} "4'-.Am..::Co:Ou::n,C:or=y..,="::req=u::este=d"'''o,::ex=em=p''''''C:n=-(,,,_-;,c.l2'YC:e.::"'::;):---------j

C Research and Development (s.c. 2(9» Six 
5. Pel'sectioo 5, the app!lC3tjOO ShaJJ contain or be aceompaoie<j by a genera! deseription of ttie facllliY·and a gaREe!-WEtie faCility, the general
nature and ~xtent ~the restoration, replacement. 01' construction to be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equip _' f i additional page{s) if 
more room IS needed. - _ 

_ See Attached 

OCT 13 2el!) 


OF TROY 

Sa. Cost of land and building improvements (excluding cost of Jand) ,. 

... Attach list of improvements and associated costs, 
• Also attach a copy of building p9I111I' ~ project has already begun, 

6b. Cost of machinery, equipment. tumfture and fixtures"., ., .. ,... ,.. , .... ,., .. ,., 
• Attach Itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total 

6e. Total Project Costs .. 
• Round Costs to Nearest Dollar 

I': "V' I 
-- 

Real Property Costs 

, $200,000.00 
Personal Property Costs 

~ $200,000,00 
Total of Real & Personal Costs 

7. Indicate the time schedule for start and finiSh of COnstruction and equipment installatlotl. Projects must be completed wfthin a two year perfod Of the effective date- of the 
certificate unless otherwise approved by the STC, 

Real Property Improveme-nts .. 

Personal Property Improvements .. 

Begin Date (MlDfY} 

1011/10 

1011110 

End Date 1M/OM 

10/31/10 

10131113 
~ Owned [SI Leased 

~ DOwned 0 Leased 
, 


.. 8. Are State EdueatiOn Taxes reduced 01' abated by the- MJchlgan Economic DevelOpment Corporation (MEDe)? If yes. appilcant must attacl1 a signed MEDC Letter of 
Commitment to receive this exemption . Dyes [SINo 

.. 9. No. of exlstfngjobs a~ thlsfac~Jtythat wI\[ be tetafned as a result of thIs project I" 10. No. <:A new jobS atth:is facility expected to aeatewiihin 2 years ofoompletion. 

13 40' 
11. Rehabilitation applications onty: Complete e, band Cof lhis section. You must attach the assessor's statement ofSEV for the entire plant rehabllitatlon dlstrict and 
obsolescence statement for property. The Taxable Value (TV) dala helow lilJSt be as of December 31 ofitle year prlorto '!he rehabaitation. 

a. IV of Real Property (excluding land) .. ....... -........ 

b. 1V ofPe~1 Properly {excludlng inventory} ......... ................... ................ ................. ...... ...................... 

c.. Total TV .. . ........ .,."." ..... ,," ...................... 


.. 12a. Check: the type of Districtitle facili1y is located in: 

~ Industrial Development Dismct D Plant Rehahilitatlon District 

.. 12b. Date district was established by local govemment unit {contact local unit} 1)< 12c. to ~:loatlon~ar:eeulativehuilding (See. 3{8l)? 



1012, ?age 2 

APPUCANT CERTIFICATION - complete all boxes. 

The undersigned, authorized officer of the company making this application certifies that. to the best of hjs/her knowledge, no information contained 

hel"eln or in the attachments hereto is false in any way and that all are truly desctiptive of the industrial property for which this application is being 

subl'Tlitted. 


It is further certifled that the undersigned is familiar with the provisions of P.A. 19a of 1914, as amended, being SecHons 207.551 to 207.572, inclUSive, of 

the Michigan Compiled Laws; and to the best of hislher knowledge and belief, {s)he has complied or will be able to comply with an of the requirements 

thereofwhich are prerequisite to the approval of the application by the local unit of government and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate by the Slate Tax Commission 


1133. Preparer Name '13b. Telephone Number 1130. Fax Number 113d. E~I1".ai! Address 

Ted Wilson (248) 399-9999 ' (248) 399-9393 I taw@cQrepartners.net 
:14a, Name of Contact Person 140. Telephone Number 140. ralC Number 114d. :&man Address 

: Amjad Hussain (248) 854-3409 (248) 928-9035 amjad.hussain@srgsaas.comI" 153, Name of Company OffIcer (No Authorized Agents) 

Amjad Hussain 
:15(;, Fax Number : 15d. Date liSb, Sjgnatura~~~~o Authoriled Agents) 

• ~\ W<) <:>-v., • (248) 928·9035 1bQ.1: \ I <;}'" \ <l 
151. Telephone Number j15g. E..meij Address1~ 15e. Mai!fng Address'~reet. CIty, State, ZIP Code) 
(248) 854-3409 amjad.hussain@Srgsaas.com950 Stephenson Hwy., Troy, MI48083 

1. Notice to the public prior to hearing establishing a district, 

Notice to taxing authorities of oppor1JJnityfor a hearing. 
3. List of taxing authorffies notified for district and application action. 

lease Agreement showing appUcanls tax liability. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION & CERTIFICATION· complete all boxes. 

This section must be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submirtJng appHcation to t.he State Tax Commission. Check items on file 

at the Local Unit and those induded with the submitial. 


• 18, Adlon taken by locaJ ~rnent unIt 


Abatement Approved for __Yrs Real ('-12). __Yrs Pars {1-12) 


After Completion ~Yes D No 


Denied (Inc!\lde Resolution Denying) 


168. Ooeurnents Required to be on file wRh the Local Unit 
Check or Indicate filA if Not Applicable 

I i 

or Indicate filA II Not Applicable 

1. Original AppUcalion plus att.achmenls. and one complete copy 
2. Resolution eslablishing distlict 

Resolution approliingldenying application. 
~r ofAgreernenl (Signed by local unit and applicanl) 

5. p,ffl<j"vitofF'ee. (Signed by local "nit and appUcanQ 

IlVfAl6.Buifding Pennttfor real impr~ments if project has already begun 
Equipment List wIIh dates of beginning of installation 

• FOl111 3222 (~applicable) 

Attached hereto is an original and one copy of the application and all dOCuments listed in 1Sb.1 also certifY that all documents Hsfed in 1Sa are 
on file at the local unit for inspection at any time. 

State Tax Commission Rule Number 57: Complete applications approved by the local unit and received by the State Tax Commission by October 31 
eacll yearw;o be acted upon by December 31. AppITcations received after October 31 may be aClad upon in the following year, 

Local Unit: Mall one original and one copy of the oompleted applica1ion and all required atlacl1menls to: 
State Tax Commission 

,Michigan Department of Treasury 
P.O. Box 30471 

Lansing, Ml489()9..7971 


(For guaranteed receipt by the STC. ~ is recommended that applications are sent by certified maiL) 

mailto:amjad.hussain@Srgsaas.com


Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
Silk Route Global, LLC



Jul 15, 2010 

Mr. Nino licari 
City Assessor 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 

RE: Tax Abatement 

Dear Mr. licari 

Silk Route Global, Inc.(SRG) is in pursuit of a MEGA gmnt from the State of Michigan. SRG designated preferred 
location is 950 Stephenson Highway in Troy and is desirous of a Personal Property tax abatement from Troy as a 
local match for the MEGA grant. Over the next two years SRG plans on purchasing $750,000 in equipment, hiring 
30 new high paying positions, and will sign a 10 year lease with the owners of 950 Stephenson if the MEGA grant is 
approved. 

SRG will be making a formal application for the abatement within the next 90 days. 

If yoo have any questions or need additional information, please call me at your convenience. 

R~y~~wn~ 
Amjad Hussain 
President 
SILKROUTE GLOBAL, INC. 

i""'4. 
~t, 

AUG 0 3 21J1/] 

1441 East Maple Road, Troy, MI48083 USA A~gP,F!AOY-o,.;0irJu Ilcpy 

www.silkrouteglobal.com +1877 SilkRoute (877.745.5768),- , 

http:www.silkrouteglobal.com


Attachment for Section 5 ofApplication for Industria! Tax Exemption Certificate 

SRG sells a subscription service to tbeir proprietary software tbat SRG currently hosts on remote servers. 
The basis ofthe service that SRG provides is to take a multitode ofsuppliers, manufacturers, or retailers 
(or an entity tbat is any combination- like Sony) and provide instant feedback on materials or products 
needed for stocking. lhis technology goes many steps beyond what we in Michigan have described as 
"Just - In- Time" manufacturing. The programming not only provides usage figures but forecasts future 
demand On a "real-time" platform at many levels in tbe supply chain. Additionally, SRG personalizes tbe 
software to each client's needs. Currently SRG client base includes Sony Corporation, Tesco, Oakwood 
Distribution (UK), and Entertainment Publications. The abilities tbat SRG's technologies have created is 
tbat it takes an almost irdinite number ofpieces of data and organize tbem in a unique personalize way for 
tbe individual client. Additionally, SRG's base program is still simple enough that it can be used by small 
retailers to control tbeir inventories. The potential growth oftbe software is unlimited. Then as the smaller 
companies grow, the specialization and individualization oftbe program will provide future income 
streams to SRG. Since the base program for each company is housed on servers controlled by SRG, tbete 
is little chance tbe program can be pirated by competitors. 

SRG has executed a 10 Year lease at 950 Stephenson Highway in Troy which is capable ofhandling 
SRG's future growth. A copy ofthe lease is attached. That future growth includes the addition of20 
employees per year for Five years and the purchase personal property over the next two years will be in 
the form of personal computers, computer equipment, and office furniture: 



SILK ROUTE GLOBAL LLC SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT PURCHACES 10/1/2010 

Capital 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

1,751

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

292

Legend

1:

Feet2920 146 Notes

  Enter Map Description

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

licarila
Text Box
Silk Route Global, Aerial and Site950 Stephenson88-20-35-126-018



Silk Route Global, LLC 
IFT & IDD Application 
950 Stephenson 
Troy, MI 48084-1172 
 
88-20-35-126-018 
 
Legal Description 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 35  
ROBBINS EXECUTIVE PARK WEST NO 3  
PART OF LOT 8  
BEG AT PT DIST  
N 01-13-00 E 45.00 FT  
FROM SW LOT COR,  
TH N 01-13-00 E 537.87 FT, 
TH S 88-47-00 E 409.00 FT,  
TH S 01-13-00 W 492.87 FT,  
TH N 88-47-00 W 162.00 FT,  
TH S 01-13-00 W 45.00 FT,  
TH N 88-47-00 W 247.00 FT  
TO BEG 



Market Value 200,000 120,000 52,800 16,896 4,055 770 116
50% of Value 100,000 60,000 26,400 8,448 2,028 385 58

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6
Depreciation 0.6000 0.4400 0.3200 0.2400 0.1900 0.1500

Taxable Value 60,000 26,400 8,448 2,028 385 58

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $35.40 $15.58 $4.98 $1.20 $0.23 $0.03
County 4.64610 $278.77 $122.66 $39.25 $9.42 $1.79 $0.27

Int Schools 3.36900 $202.14 $88.94 $28.46 $6.83 $1.30 $0.19
Comm Coll 1.58440 $95.06 $41.83 $13.39 $3.21 $0.61 $0.09

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 6.00000 $360.00 $158.40 $50.69 $12.17 $2.31 $0.35
Sch Debt 4.10000 $246.00 $108.24 $34.64 $8.31 $1.58 $0.24

Admin 0.20290 $12.17 $5.36 $1.71 $0.41 $0.08 $0.01
City 9.40000 $564.00 $248.16 $79.41 $19.06 $3.62 $0.54
Total 29.89240 $1,793.54 $789.16 $252.53 $60.61 $11.52 $1.73

Total 6 Years $2,909.08
Total City 6 Yr $914.79

50% Total 6 Yr $1,454.54
50% Total City 6 Yr $457.40
2% Total City 6 Yr $9.15

 

Application Fee (2% total city)
Net Total City Taxes Abated

Net Total Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Silk Route Global, LLC

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application



950 STEPEENSON HIG5WAY 

'rROy, MICHIGAN 

m:z:s LEASE is made between the Landlord and Tenant identified in Paragraph 1 fbI 
and 1(0) hereof, respectively, and constitutes a Lease between the parties of the 
dem.ised prem.ised" in the "Building' as defined in Paragraph 1 hereu'ponthe terms and 
conditions and with and subject to the convenante and agreements of the parties 
hereinafter set forth. 

WIT N E SSE T H: 

BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS 

1. The following are certain basic lease proV1s~onB, which are part of, and in 
certain instances referred to in subsequent provisions of, this Lease. 

fa) Lease dated and Effective as of. August~, 2010 

(b) Landlord: Indus Properties, LLC / Titanimn, Inc. 

I c) Tenant, Silkroute Global 

Id) Dem.ised Premises: suite 100[e,1l9 rentable square ft. / 1,249 useable square 
feet) 

Ie) Cammencement Date: October 1, 2010 

If) Expiration Date: september 30, 2020 

Iql Base Rent (Gress plus Electric) : 

J;'~,1;~ AH 
Months 1 through I~" 

fhl Rental abatement - N/A 

Ii) Electrical - l!'enants of monthly charge 

til Improvements. To be completed by Landlord au a turn key basis subject to 
plans and specifications. Cost of snch iIllprovements shall not 

I k) 'l'enant· s Addre.... for Notices , 

950 Stephenson Highway 
Suite 100 
Trey, MI 

11 I Landlord' s Address for Notices. 

950 Stephenson Highway 
SUite liD 
Troy, HI 

(,Ill) Deposit, 

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



PARKING 

26. Tenant shall be permitted to park on a first come first serve basis. 

ESTOPPEL C~RTIFlCATE 

27. (a) Within ten (10) days following any written request which Landlord may 
make from time to time, Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord a statement 
certifying: (i) the date of commencement of this Lease; (ii) the fact that this 
Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect, lor, if there have been 
modifications hereto, that this Lease is in full force and effect, as modified, and 
stating the date and nature of such modifications); (iii) the date to which the 
rental and other sums payable under this Lease have been paid; (iv) the fact that 
there are not current defaults under this Lease by either Landlord or Tenant, except 
as specified in Tenant's statement; and (v) such other matters as may be requested by 
Landlord: Landlord and Tenant intend that any statement delivered pursuant to this 
Section 27 may be relied upon by any Lender, prospective lender, purchaser or 
prospective purchaser with respect to the Building or any interest therein. 

(b) Tenant's failure to deliver such statement within such time shall be 
conclusive upon Tenant IiI that this Lease is in full force and effect without 
modification except as may be represented by Landlord (iil that there are no uncured 
defaults in Landlord's performance hereunder, and liiil that not more than one (1) 
monthts rental has been paid in advance. 

11< W1'lI<ESS WHE~O.r, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands as of the day 

and year first above written. 


LANDLORD: Ind:us P.l:opertie.. I 1'1tan1um Inc. 

By:_j-Hpm.(IU.!CI!~~_Y_
Date: 

TENl'.NT: S11kroute Global 

By: ~~\&~~ 
Date: 

List of E",hibits 

A - Floor Plan 
B - Farking 
C - ~ules and Regulations 

http:TENl'.NT


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Resolution #2010-08-173 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, 
viable building sites and (h) enhancing our economic development tools to attract and 
retain businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, 
empowers cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax 
abatements for eligible properties established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
following minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 
No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be 
granted until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum must be revenue 
neutral to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant 

is responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely 
payment of property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 

years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more 
than 10 jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, 
and/or owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying 
property for a minimum term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are 
satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 
the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the 
increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, 
and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease 
conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property 
taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of 
processing the application, whichever is less, and the City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 The owner of Silk Route has an ownership interest in the building, also.  
The years work out the same, in either case. 

 



October 20, 2010

To: State Tax Commission
P. O. Box 30471
Lansing, MI  48909-7971

From: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC

  This affidavit attests to the fact that the City of Troy has charged
an application fees in the amount of $9.15, equal to 2% of
the estimated abated City taxes for the life of the exemption
for Silk Route Global, LLC, 950 Stephenson, Troy, MI 48083-1172
 

  Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted
in regards to this application, or consideration thereof.

Signed:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor Dated:



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Silk Route Global, LLC, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Silk Route Global, LLC, understands that through its 
investment of $200,000.00 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 6 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2019, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2012, Silk Route Global, LLC, will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Silk Route Global, LLC, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
Silk Route Global, LLC, further understands that if it chooses 
to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior 
to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City 
of Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Silk Route Global, LLC, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  Silk Route Global, LLC, agrees that it will operate the Project 

in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of any Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 

  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, December 6, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following 

location: 

 

88-20-35-126-018 

950 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1172 

T2N, R11E, Section 35 

Robbins Executive Park West No. 3 Part of Lot 8 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
 
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
SILK ROUTE GLOBAL LLC 
AMJAD HUSSAIN 
950 STEPHENSON 
TROY MI 48083-1172 
  

CORE PARTNERS 
TED WILSON 
26622 WOODWARD STE 250 
ROYAL OAK MI 48067 
 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E- 01 Resolution for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 950 
Stephenson 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2010- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 950 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1172, Parcel # 88-20-35-126-
018,  in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          December 6, 2010                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 

Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson 
 
 
Background: 
 
  Silk Route Global, LLC, is expanding its operations into Troy, at 950 Stephenson.  As part of their 
application for incentives from MEGA, a local contribution is required.  As such, they have applied for 
tax abatement, under the new City Council Tax Abatement Policy (attached).  They intend to 
purchase computer equipment valued at $200,000.  The will also add 40 new jobs to the 13 existing 
jobs they have.   
 
  They would qualify for an Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 6 years. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The projected amount of the investment is $200,000.  Over the 6 year life of the abatement, the 
estimated total taxes would be $2,909.08, of which $914.79 would be City Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $1,454.54, of which $457.40 would 
be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
  City Council goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this application. 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
E-02



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the tax 
abatement.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve the tax abatement.  Or, City Council may choose not to grant the 
abatement.  In which case, the Petitioner may appeal that decision to the State Tax Commission 
(STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\SilkRoute\Memo IFEC 12.06.10 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, December 6, 2010  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the 

following location: 

 

88-20-35-126-018   950 Stephenson, Troy, MI.  48083-1172 

T2N, R11E, Section 35 Robbins Executive Park West No. 3 Part of Lot 8 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
SILK ROUTE GLOBAL LLC 
AMJAD HUSSAIN 
950 STEPHENSON 
TROY MI 48083-1172 
  

CORE PARTNERS 
TED WILSON 
26622 WOODWARD STE 250 
ROYAL OAK MI 48067 
 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E - 02  Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate   
(IFEC) to Silk Route Global, LLC – 950 Stephenson 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2010- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
December 6, 2010, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172, Parcel # 88-20-35-126-018; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Silk Route Global, LLC, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-
1172, for six (6) years, after completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on December 6, 
2010, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility 
that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route Global, 
LLC, at 950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC, at 
950 Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of 
Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC, Inc., at 950 
Stephenson, Troy MI. 48083-1172, Parcel # 88-20-35-126-018, for personal property for a term of 
six (6) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Silk Route Global, LLC, and payment of the application fee 
established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Silk Route Global, LLC, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          December 6, 2010                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for P3 

North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks  
 
 
Background: 
 
  P3 North America, Inc., is expanding its operations into Troy, at 1957 Crooks Ste B.  As part of their 
application for incentives from MEGA, a local contribution is required.  As such, they have applied for 
tax abatement, under the new City Council Tax Abatement Policy (attached).  They intend to 
purchase equipment and leasehold improvements valued at $145,950.  The will also add 23 new jobs 
to the 44 existing jobs they have.   
 
  They would qualify for an Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 2 years. 
 
  In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District must first be established, as the City 
Council has not designated all non-residential areas to be IDD’s.  This is the reason for the back to 
back Public Hearings. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The projected amount of the investment is $145,950.00.  Over the 2 year life of the abatement, the 
estimated total taxes would be $3,573.13, of which $1,123.61 would be City Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $1,786.56, of which $561.81 would 
be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
E-03



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
  City Council goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this application. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the district, 
and granting the tax abatement for the subsequent Public Hearing.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may establish the IDD (and approve the tax abatement).  Or, City Council may choose 
to not establish a district at this site.  In which case, the Council must then deny any tax abatement. 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\P3 NA\Memo IDD 12.06.10 



Industrial Development District 

o Yes 

Michigan Department of Treasury 
1012 (Re\l. 5~07) 

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate 
Issued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. Filing is mandatory. 

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) with the cieri< of the 
local government unit. The State Tax Commission (STC) requires twc complete sets (one original and one copy). One copy is retained 
by the derk. If you have any questions regarding the completion of this fonn or would like to request an informational packet, call (517) 
373-3272. 

Signature of Clerk 

To be completad by Cieri< of local Government Unit 
______---'__--'-'-'-:c............______ I" Oate received by Local Unit ....--.--.............------

I 10/ll!ta~/$(.L+--__----i 
STC Use Only > ~ 

1 ~ Dale Rece_ by STC -------------1 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 

All boxes must be completed. 

~ 18?3.PMY Name (A Hcan must be the occupant/operator of the facility) ~ 1b. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code ~ Sec. 2(10} (4 or 6 Digit Code) 

mmmm - 1:.5"(1"i1CJ yh: f!7t I 
.. ie. Facility Addfes5 (Clty, State, ZIP COde) {real and/or personal property location} .. 1d. CltyrrownshipNilJage (indicate which) ~ 1e. County 

mm.1957Cmak1 m'£?J 4.~ 1;...,;.. lJ.,.1 

~ 2. T"pe of Approval Requested /

00 New (Sec. 2(4» 0 Transfer (1 copy only) 

o SpeculatiVe Building (Sec. 3(8» D Rehabilitation (Sec. 3(1») 4. mou of years requested for exemption {1-12 Years} 

o Research and Development (Sec. 2(9» 2-.... __...__.. 
5. Per section 5, the appliCatioo shall contain or be accompanied by a general description of the facility and a general deseriptlon of !he proposed="u=,e:C::;af""'''.''''=cil=;Iy=-.;;:'h=.=general 
natvre and extent of the restoration, replacement, or constnJcilon to be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment tbatWl1! be part of the facUlty. Attach additional p3gc(S) if 
more room is needed, 'e.c,...-~: ' 

/2.("P.T~,~......J~ ~ k.3~k.4 '~~_J-..J.~ 
~~ at::.J ~..c-..t.J:~.,. ~~rkl 1A.I,H1~ ~~ J 

---1 
6a. Cost of land and building improvements (exduding cost of land)"" 277~ 

I" Attach Ilst of improvements and associated costs. Real Property Costs 

" Also attach a copy of building permit If project has already begun. 


6b. Cost of machinery. equipment, furniture and fixtures .... ~ ~pc'tll!-'!"'a"~""p"ro"p""erI~Y~C-os-cl-s-.. Attach itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total 

6c. T ota! Project Costs. ~ -,1C!~,-"~",1'-"~~C7,,,=-~--c 
Total ot Real & Personal Costs ... Round Costs to Nearest Dollar 

7. ~ndlcate the time sCl1edule for start and finish of construction and equipment installation. Projects must be completed within a tWCJ year period of the effecti\le date of the 

certificale unless otherwise approved by the STC. 


Begin Date (M/DfY) End Date (MIDIY) 


Real Property Improvements ,. I&/'I"f; 14/iZ- ~ iZlOwned o Leased 


Personal Property Improvements ~ 
 • [XiOwned o Leased 

.. B. Are State Education Taxes reduced or abated by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC)? If yes, applicant must attaCh a signed MEDC Letter of 


Commllmentto rece!ve this exemption. Dyes D No 


i • 9-'-'N~:'~ e~~.~:..jobs at th#;ty that will be retain-~d·~;·~m""'-.-c~~=- I. 10. NO.~;job-~·~t"th·i·S fa.~::::.~xpected t~.:~:_I:_ within 2 years of ~·~·PI~·tion:....~-:.~.'C'hC';.-p-ro7ject. 

11. Rehabilitation applicatIOns only: Complete a, band e of this section You must atiaCh ihe assessor's statement of SEV to( the entire plant rehabilitation district and 

obsolescence statement for property. The Taxable Value (TV} data below must be as of December 31 of the year prior to !he rehabilitation. 


a, TV of Real Property (exclUd[ng land) 


b, TV of Personal Property (exclUding Inventory) , 


c. Total TV .."",.... 


.. 12a. Check the type of District the facmy is located in: 


~ 12c. Is !his application for is speculative building (Sec. 3(8»? 

lID No 
~~~- =~~~~~~~~-



1012, Page;! 

APPUCANT CERTIFICATION - complete aU boxes. 

The undersigned, authorized officer of the company making thfs application certifies that, to the best ofhlslher knowledge, no information contained 

herein or In the attachments hereto is false in any way and that aU are truly descriptive of the industrial property for which this application is being 

submitted. 


It is further certified that the undersigned is familiar with the provisions of P.A. 198 of 1974, as amended, being Sections 207,551 to 207.572. jnclusive, of 

the Michigan Compiled Laws; and to the best of hislher knowledge and belief, (s)he has oomplied or will be able to comply with all of the requirements 

thereof which are prerequisite to the approval of the application by the local unit of government and the issuance of an Industrial FacmUes Exemption 

Certificate by the State Tax Commission. 

LOCAL ACTION & CERTIFICATION· complete all boxes. 
This section must be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submitting application to the Slate Tax Commission. CheCK items on 'file 
at the Local Unit and those induded with the submittal. 

~ 16. Adiontaken by local government unit 

~Aba1ementApproved for ___Yrs Real (H2), __ Yrs Pers (H2) 

After Completion I)lYes :::J No 

Denied (Include Resolution Denying) 

1
1601. D()(;jJments Required 10 be on fife with the Local 


Check or Indicate N/A if Not Applicable 

1, NotiCE to the public prior to hearIng establishing a dIstrict, 


2. NotJce to laxing authorities of opportunity for a hearing. 

3. Ust of taxing authorities notified for distrlct and application action. 

4. Lease Agreement showing applicants tax liability, 
~:;:;";:-:.. .. 
: 16c. LUCI Code 

1sti: The state Tax Commissh::l0- Requires the·fOliowing documents be flied for an 
administratively complete application: 

Check or Indicate N/A if Not Applicable 

1. Original Application plus attachments. and one complete copy 
2. Resolution establishing district 

8. Form 3222 (If applicable) 

3. Resolution approving/denying apptication. 

4. Letter of Agreement {Signed by local unit and appficant} 

5. Affidavit of Fees {Signed by local unit and applicant) 

6. Building Permit for real improvements if project has already begun: 
7, Equipment Ust with dates of beginning of installation 

9. Speculative building resolution and affidavits (if applicable) 
-- .....- .. ----1 

i :r1{1J20m=c-__-'--___~.J"'O (2'O-¥:lltDY~4-)--____1
' 17. Name of LoCal Government Body ~ 18. Date of Reso!ution ApprovingfDenying this Applfca1ion 

. CJ1)' olf "ZQ""nY-7'----~-
Attached hereto is an original and one copy of the application and all documents listed in 16b.1 also certify that all documents listed fn 16a are 
on file at the focal unft for inspection at any time. 

192. $lgnature of Clerk 

State Tax Commission Rule Number 57: Complete applications approved by the local unit and received by the State Tax Commission by October 3f 
each year wfU be acted upon by December 31. Applications received after October 31 may be acted upon in the followlng year. 

Local Unit Mail One original and one copy of the completed application and all required attachments to: 

State Tax Commission 
Michigan Department of Treasury 
P.O. Box 30471 
Lansing. MI 48909-7971 

(For guaranteed receipt by the STC. it is recommended that applications are sent by certified maiL) 

t~UClc--m-..m~_-___I_~_-8_~g_'_n_D_ate~Rmemal_~ 



Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
P3 North America, Inc



3 North enca 

I;~ north america 
~ J 

P3 North America, Inc. 23647 Woodward Ave, Suite 1 Pleasant Ridge. MI48069 USA 	 P3 North America. Inc. 
www·pJ"sroup.co!.l/r.orthamerica 

Mr, Nino Licari 
PHONE +1·248-399-1755 

500 W. Big Beaver Rd. FAX t1·24lk399-566B 
Troy. MI 48084 

City Assessor 

Mr. Nino Ueali, 

Due to our growth duling the last 5 years, we have round il necessary to relocate our current operations in P~e<;sant Ridge M'ch~an 10 
laIlJer facilities. As a result, we have committed to a five year lease of office space localed on Crooks road in the City of Troy. 
Furthermore. depending on afavorable decision from the MEGA board, we may expand our current square footage to accommodate a 
new project scheduled for ramp-tlp duling 2011. Our current projection estimates that 23 new jobs will be created between 2011 and 
2012. 

We have received and read Troy's guidelines for the Industrial Facilities Tax Exempllon. After review, we believe P3 North America, 
Inc. meets the minimum enteria required for eligibility to recieve an IFEC tax abatement and plan to submit our fonmal applicaTIon and 
supporting documenls. Please accepl this letter as our offclalletter of intent 10 apply for the Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption. We 
appreCiate your consideration and look forward to a long relationship with the City of Troy. As requested, a brief summary of P3 North 
Amenea, Inc. is below. 

P3 North America is the North American subsidiary of the P3 Group and was founded in 2005 as a result of ahybrid technolcgy 
optimization and consulting project in Troy Mich~an. We have expeneneed steady growth since 2005 and diversifted into various high 
tech industries. 

Historically, our focus has been on the development and management of altemative power4rains, betteries, hybrids, fuel cells, and 
fJectric vehicles. Since 2005, we have executed significant consulting, engifl€€fing, and testing projecis in the various high tech 
industries menUoned above. We continue to work with companies in these fields to help them bnng new technology to market 

In order to follow our International growth strategy, we have edded infotainment testing and system validation to our scope of services. 
In these areas, we are working with automotive OEM's and Tier 1suppliers to test their system behavior for new infotainment technology. 
RecerlUy, we have also expanded into the avaition industry. 

As of 2010, our focus is on high technolcgy projects and services that combine the automotive, aviation, and telecommunications 
industries. For example, we have provided extensive services retaled 10 wireless communications and navigalion systems engineering 
and tesnng. 

Thank you again for your consideration and we look forward to hearing from you soon. 

Accounting  SEP 232010Tel: 248-736-3418 
E-mail: ben.began@p3-group.oom 

111 	 MICHIGAN OffICE 
f') HorthAt'!W!(ka.l\'II:. 
UW Wooc!wW A~, SUM 1 
PleaaMt Ridge. MI 41i069 USA 

mailto:ben.began@p3-group.oom


Estimated Furniture/Fixtures & IT Equipment For Year 2011 & 2012 

Italmoda (Sofas/Chairs/Tables) 


Sunwalls (modular dividers) 


Conf/Task Chairs 


Molo (modular dividers) 


Ikea (desks,chairs, cabinets) 


Appliances (dishwasher/fridge) 


Durafon Pro (phone system) 


Durafon Pro-HC (phone system) 


Vizio (M470NV) (cont TV) 


Vizio (M320NV) (cont TV) 


Vizio Mounting 


Laptops (x23) 


Phones (x23) 


Server 


Scanners/Printers 


Misc Server/IT (backup tapes,batteries, network cards etc ...) 


Testing Equipment 


Total Estimated Furniture/Fixtures & IT Equipment 

Paint,Carpet, Electrical, Cement Flooring,Plumbing 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 4,900.00 

$ 7,500.00 

$ 4,450.00 

$ 14,300.00 

$ 2,700.00 

$ 2,500.00 

$ 2,900.00 

$ 1,200.00 

$ 500.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 32,200.00 

$ 4,600.00 

$ 7,000.00 

$ 2,500.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 15,000.00 

$ 118,250.00 

$ 27,700.00 

http:27,700.00
http:118,250.00


Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

1,150

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

192

Legend

1:

Feet1920 96 Notes

  Enter Map Description

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

licarila
Text Box
P3 North America, Inc.  Aerial/Site1957 Crooks Ste B88-20-29-426-042



P3 North America, Inc 
1957 Crooks Ste B 
Troy MI 48084 
88-20-29-426-042 
 
 
Legal Description: 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 29  
PART OF SE 1/4  
BEG AT PT DIST  
N 00-53-00 E 1316.20 FT &  
N 89-07-00 W 60.00 FT  
FROM SE SEC COR,  
TH N 89-07-00 W 402.02 FT,  
TH N 00-41-00 E 240.00 FT,  
TH S 89-07-00 E 402.90 FT,  
TH S 00-53-00 W 240.00 FT  
TO BEG 2.22 A 



Market Value 145,950 132,815 106,252
50% of Value 72,975 66,407 53,126

Year 1 2
Depreciation 0.9100 0.8000

Taxable Value 66,407 53,126

Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $39.18 $31.34
County 4.64610 $308.53 $246.83

Int Schools 3.36900 $223.73 $178.98
Comm Coll 1.58440 $105.22 $84.17

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 6.00000 $398.44 $318.75
Sch Debt 4.10000 $272.27 $217.82

Admin 0.20290 $13.47 $10.78
City 9.40000 $624.23 $499.38
Total 29.89240 $1,985.07 $1,588.06

Total 2 Years $3,573.13
Total City 2 Yr $1,123.61

50% Total 2 Yr $1,786.56
50% Total City 2 Yr $561.81
2% Total City 2 Yr $11.24

 

Application Fee (2% total city)
Net Total City Taxes Abated

Net Total Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
P3 North America, Inc.

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application



THIS LEASE is made as of the n day of May 2010 by and between WILLOWGREEN 
BUILDING GROUP, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, whose address is Stoneridge West 41000 

),Woodvvard Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, Mfchigan 48304 rLandlord U and P3 NORTH AMERICA, INC., a 
Colorado corporation, whose address is 23647 Wood-ward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48064 
("Tenanr'). 

IN CONSIDERATION OF the rents to be paid and the mutual covenants, promises and agreements 
herein set torth. Landlord and Tenant agree as follows; 

Landlord hereby leases unto Tenant a portion of the Building ("Building") situated in the City of Troy, 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan, and located on the site described on Exhibit A attached. hereto and 
made a part hereof C'Sfte"). Tl'1e Building consists of approXimately 34,373 square feet, more or less, on one 
(1) floor. The premises demised hereunder ("Premises') are specifically shown on Exhibit B attached hereto 
and contain approximately 8,691 square feet. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD for a term of sixty-two (62) months from and after the commencement of 
the term as l'1ereinafter provided. 

SECTION 1 

LANDLORD'S WORK 


1.01 Landlord agrees, prior to the commencement of the term of this Lease, to complete 
certain modifICations within the Premises and related improvements on the Site. 

1.02 Subject to 1.03 below, the Landlord's Work shall be completed on or before120 
days aJter the date of this lease set forth on Page 1. 

1.03 Landlord agrees, at its sale cost and expense (except as set forth in this Lease), to 
accomplish the Landlord's Work as set forth on ExhibH C attached hereto, made a part hereof, and initialed 
by the parties. If landlord shall be-in good fafth delayed in construction by any labor dispute, slrike, lockout, 
fire, unavanabiJity of material, weather, or other cause, beyond its reasonable control, then the period of delay 
necessarily caused thereby shall be added to the time provided for such construction_ 

SECTION 2 

POSSESSION AND COMMENCEMENT OF TERM 


2.01 Except as herein provided, Landlord covenants that actual possession of the 
Premises shall be delivered fo Tenan(on or bef6re the dalE in Section 1.02 specified for the completion of 
the modifICation of the Premises. By occupying the Premises, Tenant will be deemed to have accepted 
same and acknowledged that they are in /he condition called for hereunder. Tenant shall be required to 
accept possession of the Premises from Landlord despH:e the existence of minor punch list items so long as 
reasonably usable for Tenant and Landlord proceeds wJth reasonable diligence to complete same. Upon 
Tenant taking possession of the Premises, a mutual punchlist shall be prepared by Landlord and Tenant and 
Landlord shall promp1ly proceed to complete the punchlisl items. Tenant further acknowledges that no 
representations, express or implied, as to the condition or the state of repairs of the Premises have been 
made by Landlord or its agents which are not expressed in this Lease. The term of this Lease shall 
commence on the date when 'possession of the Premises is delivered to Tenant as required hereunder 
(nCommencement Date"). Landlord will require Its contractor to cooperate with Tenant's installers of 
equipment, trade fixtures, furnishings and decorations attached to tile improvements to the maximum extent 
possible, but delay of or interference with construction caused by such installers shall not postpone the 
commencement of the term. 

2.02 If Landlord shall be unable for any reason to give possession of the Premises on the 
COmmencement Date, Landlord shall not be subject to any liability for the failure to deliver possession on 
such date but the obligation to pay rent shall not commence until the Premises are ready for occupancy by 
Tenant. If possession is not delivered to Tenarit by October 15, 2010, Tenant shall have the right to 
terminate this Lease without any further obligation and receive back any payments theretofore made by 
Tenant to Landlord, provided; however, that Landlord's right to Lerrninate shalJ arise only if Landlord receives 
a written notice to terminate from Tenant on or before October 21, 2010. If permission is given to Tenant to 
enter into possession of the Premises for ftxturing, prior to the Commencement Date, Tenant covenants and 
agrees that soch occupancy shall be subject to all the IErms, covenants, conditions and provisions of this 
Lease, except that no Minimum Net Rent, C.MII, insurance, taxes or any other cost (except gas and electric 
utility charges) will be charged during this time. If the Commencement Date-is other than the first day at the 
month, the term of this Lease, shall be automatically extended to end on the last day of 62nd month after the 
month in which the Commencement Date. 

2.03 On the Commencement Date or w~hin 10 days after Tenant receives a written 



request by Landlord, Tenant shall confirm the Commencement Date in writing and the date on Which the 
term shall end. 

seCTION 3 

MINIMUM NET RENTAL 


3.01 In conside;ation of the leasing aforesaid, Tenant hereby covenanls and agrees to 
pay Landlord, at such place as Landlord may hereafter frum time to time designate in writing, and without any 
offset or deduction therefimTl, a minimum net rental fMinimum Net Rentar) for the original term ofthe Lease 
equaf in IoIaI amount 10 TWo Ii'Jndred Seventy Thousand Six Hundred Forty~Five and 651100 ($270,645.65) 
Dollars, payable in advance on the firs: (1") day <>f each montt; ("Due Date") in monthly inslallmenl> as 
follows: No Minimum Net Rental shail be due for the ffrsttwo (2) months of ltie Tarm; hO\Never, Tenant shall 
pay monthly its prorationate sha:e of Common Area Costs (as defined in Section 28). and taxes and . 
insurance during said two (2) month period. Thereafter, on the first (1-1

) day of the third (3ft:) month of &e 
Term. and on the first {1st) day of each and (5oIery month thereafter during 1he balance of the Term, Tenant 
shall pay minimum net rent to Landlord, as foUows: 

Mooths 3 thru 14 

MorMs 15 !hru 25 

Months 27 thru 38 

Months 39 thru 50 

Monlhs 51 Ihru 62 


Receipt of Dollars representing the third month's 
rental owing ~Dollars representing a security deposit is 
hereby acknowledged. If the term of this lease commences or ends on a day other than the f:rst clay of a 
month, ltlen Minimum Net Rental for1he partial month shall be appropriately prorated. 

Additionally, Landlord acknowledges receipt of the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred and 
001100 ($7,500.00) Dollars represenUng fifty (50%) percent of the C<:l5t of a glass wei 10 be built by 
Landlord and the sum of Four Thousand and 001100 ($4,000) Dollars as addlUonal rent agreed I!:> be paid 
by Tenant 10 Landlord ["'presenling the difference between the Three Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand and 
001100 ($396,000.00) Dollars aggregate renla: cost and the Four Hundred Thousand and 001100 
($400,000.00) Dollars cap imposad by Ten.Ill]. Landlord will bill separately 10 Tenant the laxes, insurance 
and CAM charge. for !he ftrst two (2) months of the Lease leom. 

....1III1IIIIIl.II!I!!IlIIJIIIIIIIIII!v:;.""grd.ini91y.'IILlllal\lnlIdlord.lllhe.re...byl ackoowladgas """,Ipl of lI1e tolal sum of]lIII!IIiiljiiI!_ , I IDollars for the nems set forth above. 

3,02 Landlord and Tenant intend that the Mfnimlim Net Rentai shall be net to Landlord, 

so that thIs lease shall yield, net, to landlord, not less than the MinimL<m net rent specifted in Section 3.01 

hereof durtng the IBrm of this Lease, and that all cosls, expanses ana charges of every kind and nature 

refaling to the Premises which may be attributable to, or become due during 1he term of, this tease shall be 

paid by Tenant and mat Landlord shall be.l~miffed and held harmles~ by Tenant from and against the 

payment of suci costs, charges and expenses. 


SECTJON4 

LATE CHARGES AND INTEREST 


4.01 Any Minimum Net Rental and addUlonal rent unpaid for more than fiVe {5) days after 
the Due Date and any rent received and accepted more Ulan fiVe (5) da)ls after the Due Date shall be subject 
to • ta\e oharge of five (5%) pen;en! of such "'n~ and sucI1 late charges shall be due from Tenant ro 
Landlord as addijlonal rent on or before the next tenlal Dce Date. Any default in the payment of rent shall not 
be considered cured unless and until Such ta\e charges are paid by '·enant to Landlord. Upoo defaoR 01 
paymerrt of such late charges, Landlord shall have the same remedies, as those for default in pa.yment of 
rent Such ta\e charges .hall be in addition ro any <>ther righll:S or r.medles landlord may have as provided by 
this Lease or as allowed by law. Notv.iIhalanding the foregOing, once each succeeding tweive (12) month 
period during the term of the tease, Landlord will not impose any late Charges if Tenant's monthly !"ental 
payment is received 00 laler lI1an tha tenth (10",) day of Ihe month in whk:h f. was owing. 

4.02 If any Minimum Nel Rental and additional rent, any late charges, or any other SUms 
pay.bee by Tenanllo Landlord undorthis lease r'Payables") are not paid within thirty (30) days after the Due 
Qate. the Payables shall commence to accrue interest at the rate of foUr percentage points above the then
effective prime interest rate per -annum charged by JPMorgan Chase Bank (or its successor) to ill.; best 
commercial customers; provided however, that such mfe of interest shall never be 'e.."'S j)an eleven (11%) 
percent per annum. SUch interest shall be due from Tenant to Landlord as additional rent on or befot-e jje 
next rental Due Date and shall accrue from the date that each of the PayabfeS are due under the tenns of 
this Lease. Such inlerest for Payables shall ac.."fUe until tha Payables are paid in foil. MY defautt in the 
payment of the Payables shall not be: considered cured unless and until such accrued Interest is paid by 
Tenant to Landlord. On ~lt ~f payment of such interest, Landlon:l shall have the same remedies as on 

112€13651v2 
2 

http:1III1IIIIIl.II!I!!IlIIJIIIIIIIIII!v:;.""grd.ini91y.'IILlllal\lnlIdlord.lllhe.re
http:400,000.00
http:396,000.00
http:7,500.00
http:270,645.65
licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



data'.!!! in payment of rent. Such lnterest shall be in addition to any other rights or remedies landlord may 
have as provided by this Lease or as allowed by law. 

SECTIONS 

TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND UTILITIES 


5.01 Tenant agrees: to pay as addltlona! rent tor the Premises its proportionate share [as 
defined in Section 5.01(B)] of all taxes and assessments, genetal and special, and ail water rates, and all 
other govemmenta~ impositions which may be levied ufXlf1 the Site Of any part thereof, and upon the Buliding 
and lmprovemen:s at any time situated thereon. until the termination of !.he originaf Lease term and any 
extended Lease term. Landlord represents that there are currently no special assessments against the 
Bunding and thar to the best of Landlord's knowledge, there are no speciai assessments that will be imposed 
in the future. Tenanfs proportionate share of the proper1y taxes and assessmenls for the first and last year 
of the original term or any extended term as the case may be, shall be prorated between La:ndlQ(lj and 
Tenant 50 that Tenant wlll be responsible for any such tax or assessment attributable to the period during 
wtUch Tenant has possession of the Premises, The "dUEKlate" rneft10d of proration shall be used, it being 
presumed that taxes and assessments are payable In adVance. In the event that during tile (erm of this 
Lease Q) the real property taxes levied or assess...=d against the Site and Bulding -shall be reduced or 
eiminaled, whether the cause thereof is a judicial deeminatlo!1 of unconstitutionality, a cha~ge In tt:e nature 
of the taxes imposed, or otherwise, and (it) there is levied. assessed or ot1erwise Imposed upon the 
Landlord, In 5uhsHtution for ail or part of the tax: thus reduced or efiminated, a tax (herelnafter called the 
Substitute Taxes"') which imposes a bwrtlen upon Landlord by !'eason of its ownership of the Site and 
Building, then to the extent of such burden, the SubstibJte Taxes shall be deemed a real estate tax and, for 
purposes of this Lease, be deemed Payable•. 

A. Any tax and/or assessments and of any kind or nature presently imposed by the 
state of Michigan or any pofltical subdivision thereof or any govemmental autl10rity having 
jurisdiction thereover upon, against the Premises or by way of substitution for all or any part 
of the taxes leVied against the Site and BuildIng, shan be deemed to constitute a tax ~i!1st 
the Site and Building for the purpose .Of this Sectio.'1 5 and Tenant shall he obligated to pay 
Jis proportionate share thereof as provided herein, Suer, taxes are also referred to herein as 
"Substitute Tax~" and deemed PayabJes. 

B. Landtord and Tenant ack:1owledge that Te~a11 IS leasing only a portion of the 
Building. Accordlng!y, Tenant agrees to pay to Landlord its proportionate sl'Jare of all taxes, 
assessments, and Substitute Taxes rnposed by thIs Paragraph 5,0'1. T enanfs proportionate 
share shall be equal to the prod'Jct obtaIned by multip~ng such taxes and assessments and 
Substitute Taxes b'1 a fractiOn, the numerator of which shall be the number of square feet of 
floor area leased according to the schedl.1e below and the denominator of wmch shal be the 
Iotal number of square foe! of construt:ll3d gross leasablo floor area in Ille Building in which 
the Premfses are located. landloro and Tenant agree that. fnmafly, Tenant's proportionate 
share is 21.82% ("Proporlion.te Sha""'). 

Landlord's most recent budget for CAM, Taxes, and lnsurance was in the amount of ~ 
The percentage of CAM, taxes and Insurance which T enent is obJ;gated to bear will phase in~nd 
the percentage to be: used In those Lease sections' referring to CAM, taxes, or insu:ance shall be defined 

set forth above is basad on current dtarges and may. from time to time, vary, depending on 
fuhlre actual costs and Landlord's reasonable estimates of same. 

C. T anant's Proportionate Share of an of the aforesaid taxes. assessments, and 
Substitute Taxes levied or -assessed for or during the term hereof, as deterrained. by 
Landlord j shall be paid in monthly instaltments on or before :00 first day of each calendar 
month. in adVance, in an amount estimated by Landlord as being reasonab~ related to the 
actual aIT\()unt of taxes and assessments expectec to be landlord's Proportio~ate Share, 
Landlord shall, annually, fumish Tenant wth a written statement of the actual amolJnt of 
Tenant's Proportionate Share of such taxes together with iii copy of actual tax paid billet If 
the total amol.'nt paid by Tenant under this section for any year during the term of this lease 
shall be less t>tan the actual amount due from Tenant for such year, Tenant shall pay ro 

·11263851'12 
3 

http:Proporlion.te
http:schedl.1e
licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



IN WITNESS WHEREOF.1he Laodlord aod Tenant have """""ted lr.is Lease as cI!he date 
set forth at the outset hereof. 

WITNESSES: LANDLORD: 

wn.LOWGREEN BUILDING GROUP, u.c, a 
Michigan iimlted lIabllity company 

By. ~ AJJcmNachman 
It.: Au!IlOlized Member 

TENANT: 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)88. 

COUNTY OF OAl<l.AND ) 
-11.. 

The foregoing inslrument WliIS acknowledged befo", me this K day of May, 2010. by 
PJlan Nachman, AuthoriZed Member, on bef1a1fofWiUowgreen BuildIng Group, llC. a MIchigan Jjmited 
Uabillty company. 

blie. 
COOnI\'. MiChigan 

My Commission Explres:___ 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)SS. 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) .... 

Th<l 1o"'901n9 Instrument was acknowledged before me !his ~ day of May ,2010. by 

Dr, Samit Ghosh, Chief Executive Ollicer, on behalf of P3 Norlh America, Inc,,, • Colorado C<lrporation. 

Notary u lio, 
Oakland ounty, M1chigan 
My CommIssion Expires:___ 

112638S1v2 
16 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Resolution #2010-08-173 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, 
viable building sites and (h) enhancing our economic development tools to attract and 
retain businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, 
empowers cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax 
abatements for eligible properties established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
following minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 
No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be 
granted until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum must be revenue 
neutral to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant 

is responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely 
payment of property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 

years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more 
than 10 jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, 
and/or owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying 
property for a minimum term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are 
satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 
the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the 
increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, 
and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease 
conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property 
taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of 
processing the application, whichever is less, and the City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



October 20, 2010

To: State Tax Commission
P. O. Box 30471
Lansing, MI  48909-7971

From: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC

  This affidavit attests to the fact that the City of Troy has charged
an application fees in the amount of $11.24, equal to 2% of
the estimated abated City taxes for the life of the exemption
for P3 North America, Inc., 1957 Crooks Ste B Troy, MI 48084
 

  Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted
in regards to this application, or consideration thereof.

Signed:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor Dated:



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between P3 North America, Inc., (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), P3 North America, Inc., understands that through its 
investment of $145,950.00 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 2 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2014, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2012, P3 North America, Inc., will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) P3 North America, Inc., agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
P3 North America, Inc., further understands that if it chooses 
to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior 
to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City 
of Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  P3 North America, Inc., understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  P3 North America, Inc., agrees that it will operate the Project 

in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of any Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 

  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, December 6, 2010  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following 

location: 

 

88-20-29-426-042   1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI.  48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 29 Part of SE 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
P3 NORTH AMERICA INC 
SAMIT GHOSH 
1957 CROOKS STE B 
TROY MI 48084 
  

P3 NORTH AMERICA INC 
BEN BEGAN 
1957 CROOKS STE B 
TROY MI 48084 
 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E- 03 Resolution for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 1957 
Crooks  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2010- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 1957 Crooks, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-042,  in 
accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          December 6, 2010                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 

P3 North America, Inc. – 1957 Crooks Ste B 
 
 
Background: 
 
  P3 North America, Inc., is expanding its operations into Troy, at 1957 Crooks Ste B.  As part of their 
application for incentives from MEGA, a local contribution is required.  As such, they have applied for 
tax abatement, under the new City Council Tax Abatement Policy (attached).  They intend to 
purchase equipment and leasehold improvements valued at $145,950.  The will also add 23 new jobs 
to the 44 existing jobs they have.   
 
  They would qualify for an Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 2 years. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The projected amount of the investment is $145,950.00.  Over the 2 year life of the abatement, the 
estimated total taxes would be $3,573.13, of which $1,123.61 would be City Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $1,786.56, of which $561.81 would 
be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
  City Council goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this application. 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
E-04



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the tax 
abatement.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve the tax abatement.  Or, City Council may choose not to grant the 
abatement.  In which case, the Petitioner may appeal that decision to the State Tax Commission 
(STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\P3 NA\Memo IFEC 12.06.10 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, December 6, 2010  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the 

following location: 

 

88-20-29-426-042   1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI.  48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 29 Part of the SE 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
P3 NORTH AMERICA INC 
SAMIT GHOSH 
1957 CROOKS STE B 
TROY MI 48084 
  

P3 NORTH AMERICA INC 
BEN BEGAN 
1957 CROOKS STE B 
TROY MI 48084 
 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E - 04  Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate   
(IFEC) to P3 North America, Inc. – 1957 Crooks Ste B 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2010- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
December 6, 2010, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
1957 Crooks, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-042; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by P3 North America, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI 
48084, for two (2) years, after completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on December 6, 
2010, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility 
that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North America, 
Inc., at 1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI 48084 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., at 
1957 Crooks Ste B, Troy, MI 48084 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of 
Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks Ste 
B, Troy MI. 48084, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-042, for personal property for a term of two (2) years, 
after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and Silk Route Global, LLC, and payment of the application fee established in accordance 
with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and P3 North America, Inc., a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
TLB/Agenda Item 12.06.2010/tlb 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
Date:   November 30, 2010 
 
To:   Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
 
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Cancelation of December 20, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
 
The City Council requested that the following motion be prepared for the December 6, 
2010 City Council meeting to cancel the December 20, 2010 Regular City Council 
meeting: 
 
 
 

Recommended Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the Regular City 
Council meeting of December 20, 2010. 
 
Yes:  
No:  

bartholotl
Text Box
I-04



 

 
 
November 22, 2010 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  2010/11 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
 
Background: 
 
Upon completion of the audit, we review all continuing capital projects and outstanding  purchase 
orders at year end, to determine if a budget amendment is necessary. Capital projects are 
individually reviewed and compared to the projected completed status contained  in the 2010-11 
Budget. Amendments are then made to reconcile any differences. The amendment also recognizes 
the receipt of the Energy Efficiency Community Block Grant  (EECBG) funds in the amount of 
$921,100. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The amendments will provide the necessary funding in the 2010-11 Budget to complete various 
capital projects, open purchase orders and EECBG projects. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
The budget amendments will keep us in compliance with P.A. 621 of 1978 Uniform Budgeting  Act, 
which calls for budgets to be amended when necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\12.06.10 – 2010-11 Budget Amendment No. 1 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-05



2010/11 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 1

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

REVENUE:

FUND BALANCE
     UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED 6,802,851$ 2,420,000$  4,382,851$ 

     FEDERAL GRANTS -              921,100       921,100      EECBG Funds

TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 3,341,100$  

EXPENDITURES:

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

GENERAL EQUIPMENT 50,000$      50,000$       100,000$    CATV Equipment, Council Chambers Audio Equipment

FIRE

GENERAL EQUIPMENT -$            19,000$       19,000$      Equipment for New Apparatus

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS 11,500        36,000         47,500        Various Improv. Fire Halls

APPARATUS REPLACEMENT 500,000      100,000       600,000      1- Fire Engine & Mobile Command Unit Repl.

155,000$     



CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

PUBLIC WORKS

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS 418,000$    129,000$     547,000$    Emergency Repairs Reserve, Fuel Island

MAJOR ROADS 7,715,000   1,895,000    9,610,000    Major Rd. Proj. - Wattles @ Roch., John R. Sq. Lk. to S. Blvd.,

Roch. Rd. Torpey - Barclay

DRAINS 496,140      95,000         591,140      Streambank Stabilization Proj., Sec. 4 Weir, Retention Pond Maint.

2,119,000$  

PARKS AND RECREATION

MUNICIPAL GROUNDS
     LAND IMPROVEMENTS 812,640$    96,000$       908,640$    OEC Improv. - Boardwalk Repl., Section 36 Park Improvements

EECBG - PROGRAM -$            921,100       921,100$    EECBG PROGRAM

TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 3,341,100$  

Amendment requested to provide funds to reconcile capital projects in various stages of completion at
June 30, 2010 and recognize the EECBG funds.



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 30, 2010                   
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director    
   
Subject: Bid Waiver – Michigan CAT Mini Excavator  
 

Background 
The Water & Sewer Fund operates as an enterprise fund within the City budget, which basically 
means revenues generated by water/sewer can only pay for expenditures incurred by the 
water/sewer fund including capital improvements. During these challenging economic times, the 
water/sewer division has been taking cost cutting measures and looking for efficiencies in every task 
we perform. We have reduced the number of excavating equipment from four backhoes to two for 
water and sewer work. When new subdivisions were being built, we kept these excavators busy. 
Internally, we have learned what job functions we perform well, what jobs we need to perform, and 
what jobs are cost effective for us to perform. Currently, rehabilitation of sanitary sewer manholes and 
re-taps of replacement water mains have become prevalent. The last few capital projects bid through 
engineering that involved manhole rehabilitation and the re-tapping of water services, City staff was 
able to perform the work for less than what was bid. 
 
To perform these jobs, it was necessary to lease a mini excavator. Michigan CAT was the low 
governmental quote at a monthly lease of $1,825.00. According to the City of Troy purchasing policy, 
we have expended the maximum amount for this lease agreement without City Council approval. We 
have found that with this mini excavator we are more efficient and less intrusive to surrounding areas 
making the cleanup process easier. Without this piece of equipment, it will lengthen the time to re-tap 
the residents’ water service in the Section 35 Water Main Replacement Project (started re-
taps11/22/10). We have already completed a manhole rebuilding project in the Southeastern Oakland 
County Sanitary Sewer District where we rebuilt 100 sanitary manholes using this leased mini 
excavator. We also have committed to another sanitary manhole rehabilitation project in the Evergreen 
– Farmington Sanitary Sewerage District funded by a grant through the Oakland County Water 
Resources Commission, which is anticipated to begin in early spring of 2011. We have approximately 
150 manholes to rebuild in this project with many of the manholes in this area located in backyards in 
which the mini excavator would be best suited. The grant for this project will pay for the equipment 
rental at the MDOT rate. 
 
 We have the option to purchase this piece of equipment, which was new when we started the lease 
at the governmental cost and subtract all of the lease payments we have made to date.  Performing a 
life cycle analysis on this piece of equipment under the current lease agreement, the excavator would 
be paid for in thirty (30) months. The expected life of this excavator is twelve (12) years. 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-06



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Recommendation 
 
City management is requesting authorization to purchase the CAT304CCR mini excavator from 
Michigan CAT of Shelby Township, MI, at the governmental price as quoted subtracting all lease 
payments made to date as detailed in the attached payoff rental conversion worksheet for an 
estimated total cost of $46,303.88. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Monies are available in the Water & Sewer capital improvement fund budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
S:/Miller’s Review of Agenda Items/Agenda – 12.6.10 – RB – Waiver MiniExcavatorLetter.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Cust #: C11411 Branch: Year:
CITY OF TROY Status:

Make:

Model:

Phone # S/N:
County: Sales: ID#:

RENTAL PAYOFF 9%

Rental Agreement # R78334
$1,825.00

      (before  tax )

Taxable? NO X Converting to Net Cash or ISC
RPP? NO Converting to Finance Lease

Tax (6%) RPP Total

7 $0.00 $0.00

7 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00

Hauling $0.00

RPP is rental insurance and does not apply as down payment.

The RPP open balance of: will be due at conversion.

Purchase Information
Sell Price $56,240.00 168829 170645 172615 175007 177062
Interest $2,838.88 179059 181152
Repairs $0.00 *BAH
Tax (@6%) $0.00

Total $59,078.88

Down Payment $12,775.00 27.59% Rental Payments $12,775.00

Total $46,303.88

COMMENTS:
UNPAID ERNT 179059, 181152 (assuming these are paid by 12/15/2010)

No. of Invoices Paid $12,775.00 $12,775.00
No. of Invoices Open $0.00 $0.00

RENTAL

CAT

Shipped: May 12, 2010

304CCR

FPK05984

09-431

Name:

JOHNSON

RP Interest Rate:

Address:

Today's Date:

EASTERN

RENTAL CONVERSION
November 30, 2010

2009

Monthly Rental Rate

Rental Invoices Billed $12,775.00 $12,775.00

Payoff Thru: December 15, 2010

If yes, Monthly amt

Rental Amount

ERNT INVOICES PAID

$0.00



Michigan CAT
Eastern Division
12550 23 Mile Rd
Shelby Twp, MI 48315
586-997-5300

Southeastern 
Equipment Co., Inc.
48545 Grand River Ave
Novi, MI 48374
248-349-9922 x205

JDE Equipment 
Company
56555 Pontiac Trl
New Hudson, MI 48165
248-437-8121

Manufacturer CAT Case John Deere
Model 304CCR CX50B JD 50D

Rental Cost (per month) $1,825.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00

Purchase Price $56,240.00 $56,337.00 $56,393.00
Delivery/Pickup $300.00
Rental Interest Fee $2,838.88

Discount allowed ($12,775.00)
Accrued Rental Invoices

Total $46,303.88 $56,337.00 $56,693.00

Mini/Compact Excavator, Rubber Tracks, Long Stick, Travel Arm, Cab with Heat and AC, 24" Bucket 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             November 24, 2010                
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – Cities of Rochester and Oak Park 
 

 
Background 

Attached is a copy of the proposed Interlocal Service Agreements between the City of Troy and 
the Cities of Rochester and Oak Park where the City of Troy will provide fleet maintenance 
services to the Cities of Rochester and Oak Park vehicles and equipment on an as needed basis. 
The agreements were presented to the Rochester and Oak Park City Councils and approved 
unanimously. 

 
 
Recommendation 

City management and the Fleet Division of Public Works recommend entering into the Interlocal 
Service Agreements with the Cities of Rochester and Oak Park for fleet maintenance services.  

 
 
Fund Availability  

The agreement generates outside revenue and maximizes the use of our facility and staffing. At 
this time no additional staffing is required.  There is capacity in the facility to take on the additional 
work. The hourly repair cost charged to Rochester and Oak Park is the fully burdened shop rate 
charged by the Enterprise Fund. The Enterprise Fund reviews the fully burdened shop rates on an 
annual basis, and will adjust the agreement(s) as needed.  

 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality  
Legal counsel has reviewed the contract for form and legality.   
 
___________________________________________   
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
SPL\S:\Miller Review/AgendaItem\12.06.10 – Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – Cities of Rochester & Oak Park 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-07





































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 1 - 

Jim Sterner of Kensington Community Church gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given.  
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 22, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 Robin Beltramini 
 Wade Fleming 
 Martin Howrylak 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
 Maureen McGinnis 
 Dane Slater 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 None Scheduled 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Susan S. Martin: Supports the library; supported Library Proposal 1. 

Nancy Gross: Directed specific questions to City Council and City Staff regarding 
alternatives for funding of the library, budgetary questions, etc.  

Irv Wengrow: Opposed to initiatory petition; supports the library. 

Richard Peters: Discussed various topics. 

Tony Haddad: Spoke in support of Council Member Howrylak; restated his request 
to have a formal investigation regarding the political ad in which the 
Chief of Police appeared with a political candidate; discussed other 
various topics associated with the Police Department. 

Mary Ann Bernardi: Discussed protocol for the public addressing City Council Members 
and City Staff; discussed the impropriety of the behavior at City 
Council meetings of those voters who supported Library Proposal 1. 

Tom Krent: Discussed the letter regarding the library proposals sent by Council 
Member Howrylak prior to the November election. 

Edna Abrahim: Shared the winning drawing submitted by a student depicting his ideal 
neighborhood which included a library; looking forward to learning the 
findings of the ICMA study; supports keeping the library open and the 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 2 - 

neighborhoods safe. 

Sharon MacDonnell: Supports the library; opposed to the TCU; opposed to the initiatory 
petition. 

William Cowger: Believes the decline in Troy is due to a lack of vision and lack of 
willingness to invest financially to support Troy’s future.  

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:35 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 8:45 PM. 
 

G-1 Memorandum: Response to James Savage Comments: No Stopping, Standing, 

 Parking Signs on Big Beaver, Livernois to Rochester 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 

b)  City Council Appointments/Confirmation: None Scheduled 
 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 

I-4 Troy Nature Society – Start-up Seed Money Request 
 
Resolution #2010-11-264 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, As a group of citizens has formed a Michigan Non-Profit Tax Exempt Corporation 
for the purpose of assuming operational control of the Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center on July 1, 
2011;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council is supportive of efforts to maintain quality of life venues; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has committed funds for the purpose of supporting these 
efforts; 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from 
the Troy Nature Society for payment of $20,000.00 for the purpose of facilitating start-up 
operations for assuming operational control of the Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 3 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

I-5 Ratification of Contract Extension and Early Retirement Incentive Program – Troy 

Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) 2011-2014 
 
Resolution #2010-11-265 
Moved by McGinnis   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, A tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and Troy Fire 
Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2014;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012 and 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 5 Troy Fire Staff Officer Association (TFSOA) employees will meet 
the eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of December 31, 2010 and 3 Troy 
Fire Staff Officer Association (TFSOA) employees are within five years of meeting the eligibility 
criteria for retirement from City employment as of December 31, 2010; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the TFSOA 
bargaining unit retirement system members who will be eligible to retire, or are within five years 
of eligibility, on or before December 31, 2010; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE 

OFFERED during a 45-day window of opportunity beginning November 29, 2010 and ending 
January 13, 2011, with said incentive being the option of a lump sum payment of $1,000.00 for 
each full year of retirement service as of December 31, 2010 or the conversion from a DC 
pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 

SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Fire Department budget, and funding 

for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE OBTAINED from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 

retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than February 22, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form, but in no event shall the application form be filed later than January 21, 2011; 
and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 

Plan; contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan by the City of 
Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees’ Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a three-year extension of the 2006-2011 collective 
bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TFSOA for the period July 1, 2011 through 

June 30, 2014 as presented is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and 

the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No:  None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-6 Agreement to Abide by Restrictive Covenants for Transit Center Property-

REMOVED BY CITY ATTORNEY 
 

I-7 Declaratory Action – Kempen Initiative Library Ordinance Petition 
 
Resolution #2010-11-266 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Attorney to file a declaratory 
action with the Oakland County Circuit Court to obtain clarity as to the Kempen initiative library 
ordinance petition. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  

 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 5 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-11- 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2010-11-267-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting of November 15, 2010 as amended. 
 

J-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2010-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: National Family Caregivers Month – November 2010. 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 

Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal Rental 

Equipment Including Operators 
 
Resolution #2010-11--267-J-4 
 
WHEREAS, On November 9, 2009, Troy City Council awarded contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional season to Florence Cement Company, DiPonio Contracting, Sterling Topsoil 
and Grading and ABC Paving Company as a result of an informal quote process at the hourly 
rates contained in Appendix A (Resolution #2009-11-338-F-13); and 
 
WHEREAS, All four (4) vendors have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew the 
contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 6 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts to provide snow removal services with Florence Cement Company, 
DiPonio Contracting, Sterling Topsoil and Grading, and ABC Paving Company under the same 

prices, terms and conditions expiring April 15, 2011, CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 

City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreement renewals; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to extend 
the hourly contract prices to other contractors after the awarded vendors have been employed 
to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Kerwin expected a narrative to be attached to the memorandum associated 
with agenda item N-7 Memorandum: Salary/Fringe Benefit Costs for the Positions of City 
Manager, City Attorney and All Department Directors and requested that further explanation be 
forwarded to City Council.  
 
City Manager Szerlag indicated that ICMA is currently in the process of evaluating those types 
of items associated with personnel payroll costs. 
 
Council Member Beltramini would also like to more detailed information attached if ICMA does 
not provide more detail in their report. 
 
Council Member Kerwin asked whether it is to better for City Council to provide direction to City 
Management by resolution. 
 
City Manager Szerlag asked City Council to provide direction to him through resolutions. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 7 - 

Council Member McGinnis reported that Troy was recently recognized as being the safest city 
for those cities with a population of 75,000-95,999. 
 
Council Member Kerwin asked City Council if they would consider cancelling the Regular 
Meeting scheduled for Monday, December 20, 2010. 
 
There was a general consensus that the Regular Meeting of Monday, December 20, 2010 be 
cancelled. 
 
City Manager Szerlag indicated that a resolution will appear on the agenda for the December 6, 
2010 Regular City Council meeting to cancel the December 20

th
 meeting. 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 14, 2010 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 8, 2010 
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 4, 2010 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 13, 2010 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 19, 2010 
f) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 8, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – October 2010 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Kevin M. Sagan, Chief of Police for Madison Heights, 

Thanking the Troy Police Department for their Assistance in the Arrest of Three Armed 
Suspects 

b) Letter of Appreciation from Lieutenant David Daniels, Unit Commander for Macomb 
County’s Sheriff Department’s Auto Theft Squad, Commending the Troy Police 
Department for their Efforts in the Apprehension of a LFA Ring 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 

N-5  Communication: State of Michigan-Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of 

 the Detroit Edison Company–Case No. U-16434  
Noted and Filed 

 

N-6  Memorandum: Enbridge Oil Spill, Marshall Michigan Reimbursement 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-7  Memorandum: Salary/Fringe Benefit Costs for the Positions of City Manager, City 

 Attorney and All Department Directors 
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 22, 2010 

 

- 8 - 

N-8  Memorandum: Police Grants Report 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-9  Memorandum: Closure Plan for Troy Public Library 
Noted and Filed 

 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:26 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:36PM. 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  Goals and Objectives  
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:21PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 
 



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR JUDGE MICHAEL A. MARTONE 

WHEREAS, Michael A. Martone was first elected to Troy and Clawson’s 52-4 District Court in 1992 and reelected without opposition in 1998 and 
again in 2004. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from Wayne State University and his Juris Doctorate from Michigan State University, 
Detroit College of Law; and  

WHEREAS, The community has been in constant change over the years, but Judge Martone has maintained a distinguished record of 
accomplishment, judicial integrity, character, service and excellence to all he has served. Judge Martone's professional career and much of his 
personal time has been dedicated to helping America's youth avoid problems and deal successfully with the challenges that they face in today's 
society. His frequent use of 'creative sentences' and his establishment of the Courageous Decisions Program, a nationally acclaimed alcohol 
intervention program, has raised awareness of the dangers of drinking and driving and underage binge drinking all across America. Since its 
inception in 1993, more than 225,000 students in 30 states have participated in this highly successful, award-winning program; and  

WHEREAS, On April 20, 1999, in a first of its kind broadcast, Judge Martone presented this program, via satellite to every school in North 
America. Judge Martone is a faculty member at the Michigan Judicial Institute and served as both lead faculty and as a special presenter at the 
National Judicial College at the University of Nevada where his program has been established as part of the college's curriculum. It is also part of 
SADD's national "2000 by 2000" initiative and both the 1997 and 2000 MADD National Youth Summits; and  

WHEREAS, Judge Martone and the Courageous Decisions Program have been featured on NBC's Today Show, ABC's Good Morning 
America, CBS's Early Show, MSNBC's Today's People, CNN's Newsstand and on National Public Radio's the Todd Mundt Show. In 2008, 
Mothers Against Drunk Driving (MADD) SE Michigan created the annual Courage First Life Savers Award, named in honor of Judge Martone's 
Courage First Foundation and presented him with the inaugural award; and  

WHEREAS, Judge Martone has been the recipient of the Harvard University John F. Kennedy School of Government 100 Most Innovative 
Programs in All of Federal, State, Local and Tribal Government Award for his Courageous Decisions Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, Over the years, Judge Martone has volunteered with Troy Families for Safe Homes, Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of 
Drug and Alcohol Abuse and the Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence.  In 2006, Judge Martone was selected as the Distinguished Citizen 
of the Year and an Oakland County Q2 Award winner. He has also been a soccer and basketball coach, youth mentor at St. Thomas More, and 
active with the Boy Scouts of America; and 

WHEREAS, The most important aspects in Judge Martone’s life is his family, wife of 32 years Martha Rose, & sons Jonathan and James; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Michael A. Martone is respected nation-wide, not merely for the justice that characterizes his courtroom, but for the ways in 
which he works to keep our community safe and our kids on the right path. Judge Martone’s innovative crime and substance abuse prevention 
programs have attracted national media attention and have been adopted by courts and schools all over the United States. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its appreciation and sincere 
gratitude to Judge Michael A. Martone for his many contributions to the betterment of the City during his tenure as 52-4 District Court Judge; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management and the citizens of the City of Troy, 
extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Michael during his retirement years.  His influence and contributions will remain alive 
in our hearts and will impact each of us as we journey into the future. 
  
Presented the 6th day of December 2010. 
 

 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-03



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 22, 2010               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
    
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option- 
  Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
 
Background 
 
Seasonal requirements of Lawn and Yard Services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year was competitively bid and approved by Troy City 
Council on December 7, 2009. (Resolution # 2009-12-368-I4a)  Both Green Meadows Lawnscape 
and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow have agreed to exercise the option to renew under the same prices, 
terms and conditions as the original contract.  Purchasing has conducted a market survey and 
determined the City would not benefit from soliciting additional bids. 
 
All qualified residents that apply for the program are accepted. There is no waiting list for these 
services.      
 

Recommendation 
 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional season to provide 
lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program to the low total bidders, 
Green Meadows Lawnscape, as primary contractor, and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow, as secondary 
contractor, under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring December 31, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available initially through the 
Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland County through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). 
 
 
 
 
 
VR/S: Miller’s Review/Agenda 12.6.10-Home Chore Yard Services Renewal 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-04a



 
 
November 19, 2010 

 
 

TO:  John M. Lamerato  
Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

  
 
FROM:      Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB 
      Purchasing Director 
 
 
RE:     MARKET SURVEY – Lawn Services – Home Chore Program 
 
 
Mike’s Clean Cut Landscaping LLC – Mike Misiewicz                             (248) 879-4504 
Per Mike, the market is steady right now.  He won’t necessarily increase or decrease 
pricing. A lot of his decisions on pricing are done on a case by case basis. 
 
Brantley Development LLC – Stanley Brantley                                        (810) 610-0427 
Stanley indicated there is a lot of competition driving down prices, but he runs a 
company, and can not afford to do the work for anything less and still pay employee 
taxes and insurance. 
 
Quicksilver Landscape – Dustin Bobek                                                   (586) 246-2519 
Per my conversation with Dustin, fuel prices are about the only influence on contract 
pricing.  Right now conditions have stabilized and their prices would be the same as last 
year. 
 
Michigan Outdoor Services & Construction – Gary Solomon                  (586) 879-7680  
Per my conversation with Gary, fuel prices are up along with the cost of insurance.  If he 
were to bid this year he would have to bid the same as last year, he can’t go any lower.  
 
Sierra Lawn & Landscape – Todd Daignault                                           (586) 566-5700  
Todd indicated he hopes the market bottomed-out last year and has stabilized. He can’t 
do the work for any less. Business is better this year than last year. 
 
Metropolitan Contracting LLC – Danielle Zokoe                                      (734) 709-5039  
Left three messages.  No response.   
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend the City exercise the option 
to renew the contracts with the current providers for Lawn Services under the Home 
Chore Program. Fuel and insurance costs are on the rise again and all those surveyed 
stated they could not provide better pricing for the coming year.   
  
 
 
G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 - MARKETSURVEY - LawnServices-Home 
Chore 10-10.doc 







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final December 7, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services  
  
Resolution #2009-12-368-I-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional year to the low total bidders, Green Meadows Lawnscape of Sterling Heights, 
MI, as primary contractor and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow of Roseville, MI, as secondary 
contractor at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 15, 2009, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of 
December 31, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
I-5 Approval of Request from Grand Azteca V, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of 2009 

Class C Licensed Business Located in Escrow at 4856 N. Adams, Rochester, MI 
48306, from Red Lotus, LLC and Transfer Location (Governmental Unit) MCL 
436L.1531(1) to 935 E. Long Lake and Request New Official Permit (Food) and SDM 
License – MLCC Request #524757  

 
a) New License 
 
Resolution #2009-12-368-I-5a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Grand Azteca V, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C licensed business located in 
escrow at 4856 N. Adams, Rochester, MI 48306, Oakland Township, Oakland County, Red 
Lotus, LLC and transfer location (Governmental Unit) MCL 436L.1531 (1) to 935 E. Long Lake, 
Troy, MI 48085 Oakland County and request new Official Permit (Food) and SDM License. 
{MLCC Req. #524757} “above all others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
   
b) Agreement 
  
Resolution #2009-12-368-I-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Grand Azteca V, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C licensed business located in 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
November 18, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders –  
                         Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
Background 
 Bids were received and publicly opened on October 15, 2009, for seasonal requirements of lawn 

and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional season.  

 288 vendors were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN system).  
Fifteen (15) bid responses were received, and one vendor, Metropolitan Contracting, LLC bid 
submission arrived after the specified time of 10:00AM on 10/15/2009.  Their bid is considered 
late and will be retained, unopened in the Purchasing department. 

 The award recommendation considered the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of 
factors including:  bid price, professional competence and level of service, equipment fleet, 
references, and the comfort of the residents on the program.  

 The contract warrants making an award to a primary and secondary contractor in the event the 
primary contractor is unable to perform services as specified, the secondary vendor will be called 
upon to fulfill the terms of the contract. 

 A low total award for Proposals A and B is being recommended as separate contracts with 
different vendors for each Proposal has proven to be an administrative nightmare, with one 
contractor blaming the other for uncompleted or shoddy work. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available initially through the 

Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland County through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-31, seasonal requirements of lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the 

Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) additional year was competitively bid 
and opened October 15, 2009, in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 Award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of properly executed bid and contract 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
November 18, 2009 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
 
Recommendation 
 City management recommends City Council awards contracts for seasonal requirements of lawn 

and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional season to the low total bidders, Green Meadows Lawnscape of Sterling Heights, 
MI as primary contractor and Zimmerman Lawn and Snow of Roseville, MI, as secondary 
contractor at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation dated 10/15/2009, which expires 
December 31, 2010. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S:\Miller’s Review\Agenda 12.07.09 SR1: Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-31
Opening Date -- 10/15/09 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/18/09 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: jh/sl
and Snow

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential City of Troy 11.00$           11.00$             13.25$              
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 13.00$           13.00$             15.25$              
Lots or corner lots

940$             940$                1,120$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 26,320.00$     26,320.00$      31,360.00$       

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 50.00$           55.00$             37.00$              
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 60.00$           65.00$             42.00$              
Lots corner lots

4,300$           4,700$             3,110$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 8,600.00$       9,400.00$        6,220.00$         
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated 34,920.00$    35,720.00$     37,580.00$      

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes
Date 10/14/2009 10/7/2009

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 586-254-7775 586-484-1721 248-930-8725
24 Hour 586-707-1499 586-484-1721 248-930-8725
Contact Name Dan DeClerck John Purdue
Hrs of Operation 7 AM to 6 PM 8 AM to 6:30PM 8 AM to 6 PM

Once a month or
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Blank Net 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

Late Bid:  Metro Detroit Lanscaping - Arrived in mail at 11:57 AM; Bid opening time - 10 AM

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS
Diane Fisher
Vicki Richardson
Linda Bockstanz ________________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPB
G:\ITB-COT 09-31 Lawn Care Home Chore Program Purchasing Director

Zimmerman Lawn

Current Contractor

Michael Misiewicz

SECONDARY

2009

Mike's Clean Cut
Landscaping, LLC

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

Green Meadows
Lawnscape
PRIMARY



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-31
Opening Date -- 10/15/09 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/18/09 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
Landscape

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential City of Troy 11.70$            10.00$            15.75$           
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 13.70$            18.00$            17.00$           
Lots or corner lots

996$             1,040$            1,297.50$     
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 27,888.00$     29,120.00$     36,330.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 58.50$            70.00$            59.00$           
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 69.50$            90.00$            69.00$           
Lots corner lots

5,010$           6,200$            5,020$          
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 10,020.00$     12,400.00$     10,040.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated 37,908.00$    41,520.00$    46,370.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No NO NO No
Date

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 810-610-0427 Blank 248-850-8349
24 Hour 810-610-0427 586-246-2519 586-879-7680
Contact Name Dustin Bobek Gary Solomon
Hrs of Operation 6 AM to 7 PM 8 AM to 8 PM 7 AM to 5 PM

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 09-31 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Construction, Inc.

Michigan Outdoor 
Services and

PRICE PER SERVICE

Stanley Brantley

Development LLC
Quicksilver

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE

Brantley



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-31
Opening Date -- 10/15/09 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/18/09 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
Contracting, LLC

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential City of Troy 15.00$            15.00$              18.96$           
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 18.00$            25.00$              24.84$           
Lots or corner lots

1,290$           1,500$              1,693.20$     
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 36,120.00$     42,000.00$        47,409.60$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 72.00$            50.00$              30.94$           
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 90.00$            75.00$              32.86$           
Lots corner lots

6,300$           4,750$              2,532.80$     
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 12,600.00$     9,500.00$         5,065.60$      
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated 48,720.00$    51,500.00$        52,475.20$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No NO Yes Yes
Date 10/11/2009

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 586-566-5700 734-709-5039 586-610-5950
24 Hour 586-360-6622 734-709-5039 586-610-5950
Contact Name Todd Daignault Danielle Zokoe Anthony Allen
Hrs of Operation 24/7 7 AM to 6 PM 8 AM to 8 PM

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Days Net 30 

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 09-31 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Services LLC

Thoroughbred
Building 

PRICE PER SERVICE

9/29/2009

Metropolitan 

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE

Sierra Lawn and
Landscape Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-31
Opening Date -- 10/15/09 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/18/09 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
and Snow, LLC

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential City of Troy 20.00$            19.00$            25.00$              
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 23.00$            39.00$            35.00$              
Lots or corner lots

1,690$           2,120$            2,300$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 47,320.00$     59,360.00$     64,400.00$       

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 88.00$            150.00$          125.00$            
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 96.00$            200.00$          200.00$            
Lots corner lots

7,280$           13,500$          12,250$           
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 14,560.00$     27,000.00$     24,500.00$       
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated 61,880.00$    86,360.00$     88,900.00$      

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No NO Yes Yes
Date 10/11/2009

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 313-424-3891 248-930-9320 248-302-8459
24 Hour 313-404-0216 248-930-9320 248-302-8459
Contact Name Zach Hamilton Doug Korenic
Hrs of Operation 8 AM to 6 PM 6 AM to 10 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 15 Net 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 09-31 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

College Bound
Lawn Service

PRICE PER SERVICE

Jeanette Johnson

10/11/2009

ETC. Default
Services

Integrity Lawn

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-31
Opening Date -- 10/15/09 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/18/09 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential City of Troy 40.00$               42.00$            40.00$              
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 55.00$               47.00$            45.00$              
Lots or corner lots

3,650$              3,510$            3,350$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 102,200.00$       98,280.00$     93,800.00$        

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP leaf removal

50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 75.00$               110.00$          175.00$            
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

leaf removal

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 100.00$             140.00$          185.00$            
Lots corner lots

6,750$              9,700$            14,300$           
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 13,500.00$         19,400.00$     28,600.00$        
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated 115,700.00$      117,680.00$  122,400.00$     

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No Yes Yes No
Date 10/14/2009

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 248-202-6824 586-948-1525 248-217-0140
24 Hour 248-635-4143 586-524-3689 248-885-1191
Contact Name Rhona Ravenell Keith Ives Ryan J. Stewart
Hrs of Operation 8 AM to 7:30 PM 9 AM to 5 PM 24 Hours

Quarterly or
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 30 Net Monthly

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 09-31 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Landscaping and

10/7 & 10/8/09

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

PR Property
Maintenance, LLC

Evergreen Big Beaver

PRICE PER SERVICE

Snow
Exteriors, Inc.



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
November 29, 2010 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal  

Services – Fire Stations and Training Center  
 
 
Background 
On January 25, 2010, Troy City Council approved a competitively bid contract to provide seasonal 
requirements of Snow Removal Services for the Troy Fire Stations and Training Center with an option 
to renew for two (2) additional seasons to the low bidder, Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply 
Co., of Clawson, MI (Resolution #2010-01-026-I4b). 
 
Throughout the regular snow season, approximately 90% of all call-outs for snow/ice control at the 
Fire Stations occur either during regular working hours, or when the snowfall amount is from a trace 
to 2” in depth. In both of these instances City staff can and will continue to perform the snow/ice 
control at a cost lower than the contractor. The contractor is only used when their cost is lower than 
City staff in performing the same function, such as during a snowfall in excess of 2” during non-
regular working hours.  Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply was called out a total of six (6) times 
during their first contract year for a total of $8,460.00. 
 
Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply has offered to renew their contract for an additional year 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions.  Purchasing has conducted a market survey and found 
no benefit would be derived from soliciting additional bids.  
 
Recommendation 
City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend exercising the option to 
renew for one additional season with Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply for an estimated total 
per push cost of $1,410.00 for all sites included in the original proposal at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened December 21, 2009. 
 
Fund Availability  
Funds for these snow and ice removal services are available in the Fire Department and Fire-Police 
Training Center contractual services accounts. 
 
 
 
JJB, G:/Community Center/Council Memos/Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Renewal Option-Fire Station Snow Removal.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-04b



 
 
 
 
 
DATE:     November 29, 2010 

 
 

TO:      Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:     Julie Hamilton CPPB 
      Buyer 
 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – Snow Removal–Fire Stations 
 
 
McCLELLAND LANDSCAPE, INC –  Denny                                             (248) 563-5035 
Denny stated that he will be keeping his prices the same even though equipment costs 
are higher this year.  Although he has seen an increase in the cost for plows and other 
equipment the price for salt has actually decreased.  Overall the price he charges will 
remain steady due to competition in the market place.   
 
MVP ENVIRONMENTAL LLC –  Pat Marchionda                                      (248) 330-1602 
Indicated that due to competition their prices cannot increase but due to their fixed cost 
they cannot decrease either.  Their pricing will need to remain the same as last year.  
 
TITAN TOPSOIL – Chris Merucci                                                              (248) 477-6988 
Left messages on November 22nd and 24th without response.   
 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend the City exercise the option 
to renew the contract to provide snow removal services with the current provider at the 
City’s fire stations and training center.  Snow removal costs have stabilized and not 
expected to increase or decrease enough to effect future contracts.   
  
 
CC:  File 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 - MARKETSURVEY - Snow Removal-Fire Stations 
12-10.doc 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final January 25, 2010 
 

- 18 - 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders – 

Custodial Supplies    
 
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one (1) year 
requirements of custodial supplies for the City of Troy with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
  

BIDDERS ITEMS 
  

SupplyDen of Rochester Hills 1 
Kellermeyer Company of Bowling Green Ohio 2, 9 
HP Products Corporation of Belleville 3, 6, 7 
Hercules & Hercules Inc of Detroit 4, 5 
Nichols of Muskegon 8 

 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened November 23, 2009, a copy of which shall  
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring November 30,  
2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 
 Services – Fire Stations and Training Center    
 
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the City’s Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training 
Center with an option to renew for two (2) additional seasons to the low bidder, Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened December 21, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with a contract expiration of April 15, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
        
January 15, 2010                          
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 

Services - Fire Stations and Training Center    
 
Background 
 

 On December 21, 2009, bid proposals were opened publicly to provide one season snow removal 
services for Troy’s six (6) Fire Stations and one (1) Police/Fire Training Center, with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional seasons. 

 218 Vendors were notified via MITN, with seven (7) complete bids received, along with two (2) 
bids that did not qualify due the omission of required bid deposit surety, as specified. 

 The low bidder, Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co., 890, N. Rochester Rd., Clawson, MI 
48017 indicates they can complete snow/ice removal at the Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training 
Center for a total of $1410.00 per call out; regardless of whether the request for service is for labor 
intensive parking lot/sidewalk snow plowing or less intense parking lot/sidewalk salting only, 
overtime or regular City business hours. 

 The purpose of contracting this work is to reduce expenses. The following comparisons illustrate 
the costs of the two categories for snow/ice control -  one for treatment of a trace of snow to 2”, 
and the second for snow fall of 2” or greater: 

 

Costs for Treating a Trace to 2” of Snow  
 City Staff -  $1383.10 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 

Contractor -  $1410.00 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 
 

Costs for Treating Above 2” of Snow 
 City Staff -  $3846.41 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 
 Contractor -  $1410.00 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 
 

 Use of City staff is more cost effective when there is a light amount of snow needing only salting, 
or minimal plowing. Contractor would be more cost effective when a larger snow removal effort is 
required. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
January 15, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Snow Removal Services – Fire Stations 
 
Background:  continued 
 Throughout the regular snow season, at least 90% of all call outs for snow/ice control at Fire 

Stations fall within the Trace to 2” category, meaning City staff can, and will continue to treat the 
snow/ice at a lower cost at least 90% of the time. A contractor will only be less expensive on 
approximately 10% of the total call outs when removal of larger amounts of snow is necessary at 
these facilities. It is our intent to use contracted services only when it results in a cost savings to 
the City. 

 

Financial Considerations 
 

 Funds for these snow/ice removal services will be available in the Fire Department and Fire-Police 
Training Center contractual services accounts - #101.336.344.7802.050 and 
#101.264.261.7802.050 respectively.. 

 

Legal Considerations 
 

 ITB-COT 09-47, Snow Removal Services for Fire Stations and the Police/Fire Training Center was 
competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code.  

 The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid documents including 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 

 

Recommendation 
 

 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding a seasonal, as 
needed contract with an option to renew for two (2) additional seasons for snow/ice removal 
services at Troy’s six (6) Fire Stations and one (1) Police/Fire Training Center to the low bidder, 
Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson at a total per push cost of $1410.00 for all 
sites included in this proposal at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 21, 
2009.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-47
Opening Date -- 12/21/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 3
Date Reviewed -- 1/11/2010 SNOW REMOVAL - FIRE STATIONS

jh/sl
VENDOR NAME: Advanced Landscape McClelland MVP 

& Builders Supply Co Landscape, Inc Environmental, LLC
Check # 000124218 9100602986 100983307
Check Amount $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

All inclusive per call-out All inclusive per call-out All inclusive per call-out

ITEM LOCATIONS PER PUSH PER PUSH PER PUSH

1 Fire Station #1 - 1019 East Big Beaver 205.00$                     238.00$                 295.00$                 

2 Fire Station #2 - 5600 Livernois 190.00$                     216.00$                 260.00$                 

3 Fire Station #3 - 2400 West Big Beaver 235.00$                     298.00$                 490.00$                 

4 Fire Station #4 - 2103 East Maple Road 170.00$                     222.00$                 400.00$                 

5 Fire Station #5 - 6399 John R Road 205.00$                     279.00$                 290.00$                 

6 Fire Station #6 - 5901 Coolidge 170.00$                     184.00$                 500.00$                 

7 Police / Fire Training Center - 4850 John R Road 235.00$                     333.00$                 570.00$                 

GRAND TOTALS  (Items 1-7) 1,410.00$                  1,770.00$              2,805.00$              

Daytime Phone Number 248-565-8371 248-563-5035 248-330-1602
Contact: Russ Maloney Denny McClelland Pat Marchionda

24 Hour Phone Number 248-379-6565 248-563-5035 248-330-1602
Contact: Russ Maloney Denny McClelland Pat Marchionda

Pager Number None 248-563-5035 Blank
Contact: Blank Denny McClelland Blank

VISITED THE SITES Y or N Yes Yes Yes
DATE: 12/18/2009 12/8/2009 12/16,12/17,& 12/20

RESPONSE TIME: within 1 Hour 1 Hour 0.25 Hours

FACILITY Location: Clawson/Troy Rochester, MI Troy, MI
Miles from Troy On Troy's border 5 Miles 0 Miles

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

EMPLOYEES: # of Full-Time 8 3 2
# of Part-Time 3 2 4-6

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 days Net 30

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DMS: Lantis Construction, Inc  -  No Check
Great Lakes Landscaping - No Check Grand Total Corrected by Purchasing

ATTEST:

Jeff Biegler HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOW BIDDER

Kurt Bovensiep

Debra Painter-Deagle

Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB, Purchasing Director

G:\Snow Removal ITB-COT 09-47

As Specified



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-47
Opening Date -- 12/21/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 3
Date Reviewed - 1/11/2010 SNOW REMOVAL - FIRE STATIONS

VENDOR NAME: Titan Top Soil Mike's Tree Mando 
& Associates, Inc Surgeons, Inc Construction Inc

Check # 15898815 0113985 075335
Check Amount $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

All inclusive per call-out All inclusive per call-outAll inclusive per call-out

ITEM LOCATIONS PER PUSH PER PUSH PER PUSH

1 Fire Station #1 - 1019 East Big Beaver 345.00$                 508.00$              420.00$               

2 Fire Station #2 - 5600 Livernois 415.00$                 408.00$              465.00$               

3 Fire Station #3 - 2400 West Big Beaver 465.00$                 428.00$              670.00$               

4 Fire Station #4 - 2103 East Maple Road 280.00$                 368.00$              370.00$               

5 Fire Station #5 - 6399 John R Road 465.00$                 488.00$              530.00$               

6 Fire Station #6 - 5901 Coolidge 310.00$                 388.00$              430.00$               

7 Police / Fire Training Center - 4850 John R Road 580.00$                 493.00$              695.00$               

GRAND TOTALS  (Items 1-7) 2,860.00$             3,081.00$           3,580.00$           

Daytime Phone Number 248-477-6988 248-588-0202 586-531-4740
Contact: Sarah Moultrup Al Sexton Jeff

24 Hour Phone Number 248-388-3023 248-789-3039 586-222-3990
Contact: Chris Merucci Al Sexton Jim/Paul

Pager Number 248-388-3023 N/A 586-531-4741
Contact: Chris Merucci N/A Nick

VISITED THE SITES Y or N Yes Yes Yes
DATE: 12/4/2009 12/10/2009 12/10/2009

RESPONSE TIME: within 2 Hours 2 Hours 3 Hours

FACILITY Location: Farmington Hills, MI Troy, MI Sterling Heights, MI
Miles from Troy 23 Miles 0 Miles 5 Miles

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

EMPLOYEES: # of Full-Time 6 35 4
# of Part-Time 13 2 6

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 15 30 Days Net Net 30

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL-- Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Services for the City of Troy
six (6) Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training Center with an Option to Renew for two (2)
Additional Seasons

G:\Snow Removal ITB-COT 09-47

As Specified



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-47
Opening Date -- 12/21/09 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 3
Date Reviewed -- 1/11/2010 SNOW REMOVAL - FIRE STATIONS

VENDOR NAME: ABC Paving
Company

Check # 101023716
Check Amount $1,000.00

All inclusive per call-out

ITEM LOCATIONS PER PUSH
Based on 1"-3" Snow Event

1 Fire Station #1 - 1019 East Big Beaver 510.00$                 

2 Fire Station #2 - 5600 Livernois 520.00$                 

3 Fire Station #3 - 2400 West Big Beaver 700.00$                 

4 Fire Station #4 - 2103 East Maple Road 500.00$                 

5 Fire Station #5 - 6399 John R Road 600.00$                 

6 Fire Station #6 - 5901 Coolidge 490.00$                 

7 Police / Fire Training Center - 4850 John R Road 900.00$                 

GRAND TOTALS  (Items 1-7) 4,220.00$             

Daytime Phone Number 734-341-7424
Contact: Dan Dingman

24 Hour Phone Number 734-231-3486
Contact: Josh Christman

Pager Number Blank
Contact: Blank

VISITED THE SITES Y or N Yes
DATE: 12/17/2009

RESPONSE TIME: within 1 Hour

FACILITY Location: Trenton, MI
Miles from Troy 40 Miles

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes

EMPLOYEES: # of Full-Time 30
# of Part-Time 150 (winter months)

PAYMENT TERMS: Blank

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Yes

G:\Snow Removal ITB-COT 09-47

As Specified



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 29, 2010 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend City 

Funds – MMRMA Risk Avoidance Program Grant – TASER Purchase 
 

Background 
The Troy Police Department’s Training Section recently conducted a study on the use and 
deployment of TASER’s.  The most up to date research in this regard, supported by TASER, as well 
as the Force Research Center, which is a non-profit entity that conducts research on police use of 
force, indicates departments that utilize TASER’s should require officers to carry the TASER on the 
opposite side as the fire arm and be trained to draw and deploy it with the weak hand.  In addition, 
rather than equipping only a portion of officers assigned to Road Patrol duties each day with a 
TASER, every officer assigned to patrol should be issued his/her own TASER and accompanying 
holster. This practice ensures officers are consistently equipped, and reinforces proper muscle 
memory when weapon choices are required under stressful conditions.  
 
The department is currently completing a comprehensive training protocol that implements the above 
recommendations. 
 
Purchase of additional equipment is now required to complete this transition. 
 
Recommendation 
It is the recommendation of City staff to purchase the necessary equipment from Michigan TASER 
Distributing, the sole source vendor in Michigan for TASER equipment for an estimated total cost of 
$41,483.37, as detailed in Bid #1864, dated 11/23/10. 
 
Fund Availability  
Monies are available in the general fund of the Police administration forfeiture accounts. 
 
Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) Grant  
The Police department is applying for a grant under the MMRMA RAP Grant. This grant will pay for 
50%, not to exceed $400 per TASER for 30 of the needed TASERS. This grant is a reimbursement 
grant where we must spend the funds and then get reimbursed. A representative of the MMRMA who 
approves the TASER RAP projects stated that we would be eligible for the 50% reimbursement of 30 
TASERS for a savings of $12,000.00.  The RAP Grant will also pay for 50% of the training suit for a 
savings of $212.50. 
         
Prepared by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski  

pallottaba
Text Box
J-04c



BID
Date

11/23/2010

BID #

1864

Name / Address

City of Troy
Police Department
500 W. Big Beaver
Troy, Michigan  48084-5285

Michigan Taser Distributing
10422 Londonderry Dr.
South Lyon, MI  48178
Office

248-446-0373
Fax #

248-446-0378

www.michigantaser.com

Total

Shipping & Handling charges on net invoice price;
1.5% <$5,000.00, 1% >$5,000.00, ($7.50 min.)

Acceptance Of Proposal
All prices, specifications and terms are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.

TERMS: NET 10 DAYS  ***** ALL SALES ARE FINAL

Date:__________________                      Signature:_____________________

Customer
Message

Item Description Qty Cost Total

26011 X-26E, Black/silver, with Blade-tech and DPM 47 809.95 38,067.65
44952 RH-Taser Bladetech X-26, w/TekLok, short hood, RH -47 42.00 -1,974.00
BH-Serpa-X26-R... Serpa, RH, X26 holster, Basket Weave 47 46.00 2,162.00

BH-Serpa-X26-R... Serpa, RH, X26 holster, Basket Weave 52 46.00 2,392.00

44550 Training Suit, Simulation suit II 1 425.00 425.00

S & H Shipping  & Handling, (1.5% <$5,000.00, 1%>$5,000.00)
**$7.50 Min.**

410.72 410.72

$41,483.37



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 17, 2010                 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  

  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award: Sole Bidder - Vehicle Wash Services 
 

Background 
On November 10, 2010, a bid proposal was opened to furnish two-year requirements for Vehicle 
Wash Service with an option to renew for two additional years. 51 companies were notified of the 
solicitation via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) website.  Five (5) local 
companies received calls directly.  Vehicles are washed on an as needed basis. It is anticipated this 
award will allow employees to keep their vehicles clean, reflecting a positive image of the City to the 
general public and increase the longevity of the vehicles. 
 

Recommendation 
After reviewing the proposal, the Fleet Maintenance Division recommends awarding the contract for 
vehicle exterior wash only to the sole bidder, Pro Enterprise Inc, dba Pro Car Wash, for an estimated 
annual cost of $14,526.00 for Items #1 and #3, at the unit prices listed below.  No bids were received 
for the interior/exterior wash service. An informal quote process will be used to secure pricing for this 
service as total costs are expected to be below the formal bid threshold of $10K.  The approximate 
number of interior/exterior washes per year is expected to drop to 180 per year due to the interior 
complexity of police vehicles.  

 
ITEM EST QTY 

(Washes) 
DESCRIPTION PRICE PER 

WASH  
ESTIMATED 
TOTAL  

     

Pro Enterprise Inc  
1. 2,670 Wash Outside Only 

Car, mid-size SUV 
and Pickup 

$4.05 $ 10,813.50 

3. 825 Wash Outside Only 
Pickup Trucks & Vans 

$4.50 $   3,712.50 

 
 ESTIMATED TOTAL COST:  $ 14,526.00 
 

Fund Availability  
Funds for this service are available in Fleet Maintenance – Equipment Operation and Maintenance 
Account, Outside Maintenance 
 
 
SPL\ S:\Miller Review/Agenda Item\12.06.10 – SR2 – Vehicle Wash Services  

pallottaba
Text Box
J-04d



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-36
Opening Date -- 11/10/10 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Reviewed -- 11/17/10 sl VEHICLE WASH SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: Pro Enterprise Inc
dba Pro Car Wash

EST SERVICE COST/ COST/ COST/ COST/
ITEM QTY          DESCRIPTION LEVEL UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT

1. 2,670 Wash Outside of Vehicle A 4.05$                       
(passenger car & mid-size SUV, Pickups)

2. 130 Complete Car Wash B N/A
  (clean inside/out)

3. 825 Pickup Trucks and Vans A 4.50$                       
  (outside wash)

4. 50 Pickup Trucks and Vans B N/A
  (clean inside/out)

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 14,526.00$              

3785 Rochester Rd, Troy

CAR WASH LOCATIONS: 3688 Rochester Rd, Troy

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper. 7am-8pm; 9am-5pm Sun

Phone # (248) 778-5390

INSURANCE Can meet XX
Cannot meet

FACILITY SITE VISIT:     Contact Name Robert Waldron 
    Phone # (248) 778-5390

    Facility Address 3785 Rochester Rd, Troy

PAYMENT TERMS:  Net 20th 

WARRANTY: Blank

EXCEPTIONS: None

ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed Y or N Y

SOLE BIDDER

PROPOSAL: Two-Year Requirements for City Vehicle Wash Service with an Option to Renew
for an Additional Two (2) Years

ATTEST:
Sam Lamerato _____________________________
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Julie Hamilton Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 10-36 Vehicle Wash Services



bartholotl
Text Box
J-05































bartholotl
Text Box
J-06





















pallottaba
Text Box
J-07



















pallottaba
Text Box
J-08



















pallottaba
Text Box
J-09



















 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
December 1, 2010 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
  Steve Burns, SAFEbuilt Building Official 
  Steve Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
 
Subject: Contract to Transfer Ownership and Responsibility  
  ALOeTERRA Solar House 
 

 
Lawrence Technological University (LTU) has presented the City of Troy with a contract to transfer 
ownership and financial responsibility for the solar house to the City of Troy.  City Management 
hesitates to recommend approval of the contract because maintenance issues have plagued the 
house ever since it was placed on the foundation.  Steve Pallotta, Building Operations Director, has 
summarized the history of the house, including repairs and improvements provided by the City of Troy 
(see attached).   
 
Although the house was designed to function as a residence, it does not comply with the Michigan 
Building Code.  Perhaps the most important issue is that the house does not function as designed, to 
be “off the grid”.  Because of the heating system failure the house was connected to the electrical 
grid, so that an electrical heating system could be installed to prevent pipes from freezing in the 
winter months.   
 
The solar house has been classified by the Building Inspection Department for use as an exhibit 
facility, but the house still isn’t in compliance with the appropriate building codes.  Inspections have 
determined that prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy the following items need to be resolved 
by LTU: 
 
1. LTU shall provide written inspection verification from the City of Southfield or another Certified 

Building Official that all of the building components were inspected for compliance with the 
Michigan Building Code and other applicable codes for the electrical, mechanical and plumbing 
components.  (Estimated cost unknown) 

 
2. Plumbing requires a test report for backflow protection.  (Estimated cost $200). 
 
3. The crawl space and foundation have standing water that needs to be pumped out and future 

water infiltration needs to be addressed by installing a perimeter drain system.  (Estimated cost 
$5,000.00) 

pallottaba
Text Box
K-02a



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
4. The foundation requires that all gaps and holes be sealed.  Interior crawlspace walls need to be 

insulated.  Ground floor area throughout the crawl space requires pea stone and 6mil vapor 
barrier to be installed.  Grade needs to be lowered next to foundation vent.  (Estimated cost 
$15,000 to $22,000)   

 
5. Operable (open/closeable) foundation vents need to be installed. (Estimated cost $2,500) 
 
6. Railing systems need to be installed at both sides of ramps. (Estimated cost $2,000) 
 
7. Broken deck boards need to be repaired or replaced in house. (Estimated cost $750)  
 
8. Install grate system over deep window well and planter box at seating area outside slider door. 

(Estimated cost $500) 
 
9.  Repair broken/ rotten wood in planter boxes in house by replacing wood and line with 
      rubber membrane.  (Estimated cost $1,500.00)  
 
Based upon the incomplete status of the solar house, execution of the contract to take ownership and 
financial responsibility of the house is not recommended.  City Management determined that City 
Council has three options for resolving the issue of ownership and responsibility of the solar house: 
 
1. Require LTU to make repairs to the house prior to City Council executing the ownership 

agreement. 
 
2. Require that LTU pay for the demolition of the solar house. 
 
3. Require LTU to become responsible for the house and pay for the relocation of it off the Civic 

Center site. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MM/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\12.06.10 - Contract to Transfer Ownership and Responsibility ALOeTERRA Solar House 

 



1 
 

 
November 2, 2010 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
                                Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director   
 
SUBJECT:   Solar House Analysis 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The solar house was acquired through a discussion between former Assistant City Manager Brian 
Murphy, the Troy Chamber of Commerce, and Lawrence Technological University (LTU).  The intent 
of the building was to serve as a demonstration project on sustainable building practices that could be 
used by students, designers, builders, and developers to incorporate those technologies into their 
projects.  The building was donated to the Troy Chamber of Commerce, who in turn donated it to the 
City of Troy. The estimated cost of the project to LTU was around $550,000.00.  The solar house was 
moved to the northwest side of the Troy Community Center site in October of 2007. 

 
CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS 
 
October 2007 
• Lawrence Technological University students compete in solar decathlon in Washington, D.C. 
• Unassembled house arrives on the Civic Center site. 
 
Late Fall 2007  
• Foundation completed by LTU. 
• Students and LTU attempted to reassemble house on site.  Assembly proved unfeasible and parts 

of the house were shrink wrapped and stored on site over winter.   
• The City Water department installs water and sanitary sewer lines. 
• Cost for the above services accrued by the City of Troy was $6255.10(internal cost that was not 

reimbursed). 
• City of Troy Streets department installed sidewalks, storm sewer, and final grading at an internal 

cost estimated at $10,000.00. 
 
Late Spring/Summer 2008 
• LTU provides students, plumbers and carpenters to complete reassembly of house. Students 

reassembled the house pieces and discovered moisture had penetrated the shrink wrap and the 
floor is damaged from winter weather.   

• Plumbers replumb utility closet. 

 



2 
 

• Carpenters repair floor, wall cracks, trim, repaint, assemble deck, and construct battery storage 
unit.   
 

Summer 2008 
• LTU students and Harold Remlinger, LTU adjunct professor and architect, assemble evacuated 

tubes and solar panels.   
 
October 2008  
• Ribbon cutting ceremony. 
 
Fall/Early Winter 2008 
• Technical issues are discovered by Harold Remlinger, LTU adjunct professor, with the Solar 

House systems. A tank less hot water system is installed to back-up the heating system by 
Guardian Plumbing and paid by LTU. Lack of sun would not allow the original heating system to 
be fully energized by solar conversion only.   

• Subsequently, it was found that the tank less hot water system could not generate enough heat 
either.  The heat was turned off in the house by LTU representative.  The Parks and Recreation 
staff monitors temperature.  It is discovered that the power converters shut down several times per 
day.  Power converters convert battery DC power, created by solar panels, to AC power battery 
for the house.  When batteries are lowered to a certain level, converters go off line.  Per 
instructions from LTU representative, the Parks and Recreation staff manually reset the 
converters several times per day.   

 
November 2008 
• Building Operations Director spoke with LTU representative to schedule formal training. No date 

set because the Solar House was not operating. LTU will contact City of Troy when ready. 
 
December 2008 
• A formal training date is set for Wednesday, December 3rd at 9:00 AM. The Building Operations 

department, along with members of Parks and Recreation, will meet at the Solar House with LTU 
representatives. The Solar House was not generating any electricity and no heat. The City of Troy 
was told that the main circulating pumps were not working properly and the pumps were draining 
the batteries. LTU was to look into the problem and get it corrected. 

• On December 10, LTU requested the Director of Building Operations to provide a cost for 60 
amps of power from the Community Center to the Solar House at an estimated cost of $3100.00. 
All work to be done with the Building Operations staff. Building Operations was again asked to 
change the initial 60 amp service to 100 amps to power the entire house. The cost increased to 
$3600.00 for the additional amperage needed. 

• On December 18, the Building Operations Director and Harold Remlinger with LTU discussed the 
impact of the ground being frozen, and the potential for other damage that could occur. The final 
decision was to install power to the Solar House in the spring of 2009. 

 
December 2008 
• LTU representative informed Parks and Recreation staff that batteries were being damaged by 

frequent reset so the converters should be turned off.  At this time, the utility closet was 
functioning, but there was no heat to the house.  With the converters off, there was no power to 
the house.   

 
 



3 
 

December Holiday 
• With freezing temperatures, the water lines within the house froze and burst, thus creating water 

damage.   
 
December 29, 2009 
• The water damage was discovered and water service to the house was shut off.   
 
February 2009 
• LTU, City, and Chamber representatives meet to review tasks necessary to turn house over to the 

City, repair house, fund repairs, etc.  The cost of repairs was estimated to be $16,500.00.  Repairs 
were to include traditional electrical power back-up when solar power was inadequate to energize 
the house.   

 
May 2009 
• An Oakland County Green Summit was conducted at the Community Center with the intention of 

touring the solar home.  Organizers were informed by Parks and Recreation staff that home could 
not be toured due to condition.   

• Shawn Lewis, Detroit News reporter investigates and writes piece about the status of the house.  
Story is picked up by other media outlets.   

 
CURRENT STATUS AND RESOLUTION 
 
1. The City of Troy Building Operations department provided necessary repairs to the plumbing and 

heating systems at an estimated repair cost of $8,700.00 which includes wages, benefits, and 
material cost. 

2. The Parks and Recreation department staff time provided approximately 350 hours at an 
estimated cost of $9,000.00.  

3. The Solar House is energized by the Detroit Edison. This is the primary source of energy for the 
heating system, circulation pumps, and heat trace for the incoming water line.  

4. Functions and tours are being scheduled with LTU students and the Parks and Recreation 
department. 

5. Building Operations incorporated into the daily building checks, the physical monitoring of the 
solar house including internal temperatures. 

 
FUTURE OUTCOME AND USAGE 
       
1. The Parks and Recreation Department has indicated that the solar house will not be used for 

programming and events. This is based on the actual size of the building, and the amount people 
or students that can assemble inside at one time. 

2. The intended future use of the Solar House is as a demonstration site to showcase the 
sustainable building practices that are incorporated in its design. 

3. LTU will train students to serve as tour guides for the Solar House. 
4. LTU and the Troy Chamber of Commerce are currently compiling the names of groups interested 

in taking tours. These tours will be conducted by LTU students. 
 
FUTURE MAINTENANCE COST 
 
1. Annual maintenance and operation cost $3,000.00. 
2. Battery life expectancy is 5 years with an estimated replacement cost of over $25,000.00. 



4 
 

3. Complete demolition cost and site restoration estimated $20,000.00. 
4. Budget Reserve Capital $5000.00 per year. 
5. Solar House will be maintained by the Building Operations department and most work will be 

performed in house. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
1. Total investment by Lawrence Technological University $550,000.00. 
2. City of Troy associated expenditures with site development, water and sewer service, operation, 

and repair costs $50,455.00. 
3. Facility will be used for educational purposes to demonstrate the working display of green 

technologies. 
4. Removing and demolishing this facility could cause negative impact that could misrepresent the 

City of Troy policy on going green. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

1 

 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
October 19, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael Bartnik Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-10-044 
Moved by Edmunds 
Seconded by Courtney 
 

MOVED, To approve the September 21, 2010 Regular and Study Session meeting 
minutes as published. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Clark 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOSEPH MANIACI, MONDRIAN PROPERTIES WESTON 

DOWNS LLC, VACANT SITES AT 694, 702 AND 710 SEABISCUIT AND 3901, 
3909, 3925, 3933 AND 3941 APPALOOSA (WESTON DOWNS) – In order to 
construct 8 detached condominium units, a variance to allow the minimum distance 
between buildings to be no less than 10 feet.  Chapter 31.30.00 (L) of the Zoning 
Ordinance allows no less than a 20 foot minimum distance between buildings. 
 
Mr. Evans announced receipt of written correspondence from the applicant 
requesting to withdraw the item.  Mr. Evans said the applicant would be required to 
re-apply and proper noticing would be required in accordance with State law should 
the applicant wish to pursue the variance in the future.  He indicated it would be 
appropriate for the Board to entertain a motion to accept the withdrawal request. 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01a



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

2 

 

Resolution # BZA 2010-10-045 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To accept the applicant’s withdrawal request. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Clark 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, YACOUB MURAD, VACANT LOT ADJACENT TO AND 
EAST OF 734 AMBERWOOD – In order to build a new house, 1) a 5 foot variance 
from the required 10 foot side yard setback, and 2) a 15 foot variance from the 
required 45 foot rear yard setback. 
 
Mr. Evans announced receipt of a letter from the applicant requesting to withdraw 
the item.  Mr. Evans said the applicant would be required to re-apply and proper 
noticing would be required in accordance with State law should the applicant wish to 
pursue the variance in the future.  He indicated it would be appropriate for the Board 
to entertain a motion to accept the withdrawal request. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-10-046 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To accept the applicant’s withdrawal request. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Clark 
 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
Chair Lambert announced that four (4) affirmative votes are required for approval to 
grant or deny a request.  He indicated that because one Board member is absent at 
tonight’s meeting, the Applicant has the option to request their item be postponed to 
a future date certain where a full Board might be present.   

 
A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL REQUEST, ROBERT AND GENOVEVA RASCOL, 635 

HARTLAND – A request to allow the temporary outdoor parking of a commercial 
vehicle (stake truck) in a one family residential district. 
 
The applicant, Robert Rascol, was present.  Mr. Rascol requested to postpone the 
request to the November 16, 2010 regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that notice of this Public Hearing was given in accordance with 
the State law and the Zoning Ordinance, and that further notice is not required 
should the Board grant postponement to a date certain. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

3 

 

Resolution # BZA 2010-10-047 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 

MOVED, To postpone the item to the November 16, 2010 Regular meeting. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Clark 
 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DAVID J. ZABLOCKI, 3920 CHESTNUT HILL COURT – In 
order to enlarge the existing deck so that it is 21 feet from the rear property line, 1) a 
9 foot variance to the requirement that unenclosed decks may extend into the 
required rear yard setback by no more than 15 feet, and 2) a 4 foot variance to the 
requirement that the unenclosed deck be set back at least 25 feet from the rear 
property line. 
 
The applicant, David Zablocki, was present.  Mr. Zablocki indicated he would like the 
Board to hear his request tonight, acknowledging his right to postpone due to there 
not being a full Board.   
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance request with respect to its 
location and zoning of adjacent properties and addressed the requested setback 
variances.  He reviewed the photographs submitted by the applicant.   
 
Chair Lambert noted the application indicated the primary reason for the variance 
request is a safety concern for his children in relation to the slope of the pond.  He 
asked if there are any other steps legally that the applicant could take to address the 
safety concerns, such as filling in the pond or putting up a fence. 
 
Mr. Evans said the applicant would be allowed to put up a six-foot high fence along 
the rear and side property lines.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said it appears from the photographs that the deck is already under 
construction. 
 
Mr. Evans agreed, and said the applicant would address that. 
 
Mr. Zablocki said he would like to expand the existing deck for the safety of his 
children when they are outside.  He addressed concerns with the lot elevations, the 
natural pond owned by his neighbor and the Rouge River to the south.  Mr. Zablocki 
confirmed that construction of the deck is in progress.  He voluntarily stopped the 
project when he heard by word of mouth that the City requires a permit, and it is his 
intent to comply with City requirements.  Mr. Zablocki stated his neighbors are 
supportive of the project because they believe the deck will add value to the 
neighborhood.  Mr. Zablocki noted documentation from neighbors in support of the 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

4 

 

deck is on file.  Mr. Zablocki addressed the deck design and appearance, and its 
relation to the sight line of his children when they are outside. 
 
There was discussion on how to redesign the deck so that it might fit within the 
required setbacks.  The existing deck is approximately 10 feet deep at its maximum 
depth.  The deck expansion would be at the same elevation and blend into the 
existing deck.  It was determined that the existing deck could be lengthened by 
about 7 feet maximum and still be within the zoning requirements.   
 
Mr. Edmunds asked the applicant to address the practical difficulty with the land that 
necessitates the requested variance. 
 
Mr. Zablocki addressed the layout of the property; the elevation and slope variations, 
the pond, the Rouge River, the existing walkout basement and sight distance to 
keep children in view.  He said installing a fence along the rear property line (263’) 
would be a financial challenge, as well as taking away the beauty of the lot.  Mr. 
Zablocki indicated the existing berm is necessary to prevent potential flooding 
problems.  Mr. Zablocki said they moved into the house in August of this year, and 
they believe the deck would add value to their home as well as to neighboring 
homes. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated the City Ordinance as well as the Zoning Enabling Act does not 
allow the Board to grant a variance based solely on financial considerations, but he 
noted the Board can consider financial information as relates to other determinations 
made under the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kneale asked if the Board can consider the impact of an aesthetic issue to the 
property as part of its determination. 
 
Mr. Motzny replied that a portion of the City Ordinance allows the Board to consider 
environmental impacts; for instance, a practical difficulty based on a significant 
natural feature that would be negatively affected.  
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that the same dimensional setback requirements would apply if 
a patio at ground level were proposed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted that written correspondence 
from three neighbors in support of the variance request is on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion continued on modifications to the deck design. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

5 

 

Resolution # BZA 2010-10-048 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Edmunds 
 

MOVED, To deny the variance request. 
 

Special Findings: 
 There is not a practical difficulty that runs with the land.  It is a self-created 

problem as the property has been purchased within the last several months and 
a matter of which the applicant should have exercised due diligence prior to 
buying. 

 There are significant natural features that would be negatively impacted if the 
variance were granted; namely, the pond and the Rouge River are both natural 
features which should be preserved.  In this instance, there would be some 
encroachment onto the aesthetic view of those features.   

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he does not see the deck as a detriment to the pond or the Rouge 
River.  He is not sure that one can see the Rouge River from the deck unless the 
trees are bare, and he believes the pond is located too far away for any negative 
impact. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that although he wants people to move into Troy and buy beautiful 
pieces of property, from viewing the photographs provided by the applicant, it 
appears the deck would extend out into the visual area of the pond and interfere with 
the natural features of the pond. 
 
Mr. Zablocki said they took into consideration the pond, the Rouge River and the 
differences in elevations when they bought the house. 
 
Mr. Zablocki further discussed the deck dimensions and photographs.  He voiced the 
support of his neighbors to build an aesthetically pleasing deck.  Mr. Zablocki said 
the deck would not impact any view of the water, nor interfere with visual sight line of 
the water and pond from neighboring properties.  He addressed the elevation issues 
and said they cannot be resolved by fill. 
 
Discussion continued on alternative ways to expand the deck within the parameters 
of the Zoning Ordinance: 
 Expand width of existing deck in other locations. 
 Construct deck along the entire rear width of the house.  
 Reconfigure stairs. 

 
Mr. Kneale commended the applicant in following through with City regulations.  Mr. 
Kneale said he does not believe there is an aesthetic impediment to the Rouge 
River, the pond or the scenic nature of the trees.  He believes there are other 
options the applicant could consider to build a deck without getting a variance from 
the City.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

6 

 

Mr. Edmunds said the applicant has not demonstrated a practical difficulty with the 
land.  He said the applicant purchased the property knowing that with two small 
children there always is a safety concern with a pond, and putting up a temporary 
fence is an alternative. 
 
Mr. Courtney agreed that there appears to be no practical difficulty with the land. 
 
Chair Lambert indicated he would be voting no on the motion to deny the request.  
Chair Lambert addressed what he sees as practical difficulties with the land; the 
unusual configuration of the property and the unusual slope in the back yard.  He 
would like to see the applicant consider alternative modifications to the deck design. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 

Yes: Bartnik, Courtney, Edmunds, Fisher, Kneale 
No: Lambert 
Absent: Clark 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-10-049 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 
 

MOVED, To excuse Member Clark from attendance at this meeting.   
 

Yes: Courtney, Lambert 
No: Bartnik, Edmunds, Fisher, Kneale 
Absent: Clark 
 

MOTION FAILED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  OCTOBER 19, 2010 
 
 

7 

 

Mr. Motzny addressed the following questions posed by Mr. Edmunds, as relates to the 
granting/denial of commercial vehicle appeals: 
 

 Can and/or should the BZA consider financial hardships in making a determination? 
 
Mr. Motzny:  Under the Zoning Ordinance, it is indicated that in determining whether 
or not to approve the temporary parking of a commercial vehicle, except for the 
specific provisions relating to commercial vehicles, the matter should be considered 
like any other variance request.  A variance cannot be granted based on a financial 
hardship alone.  However, that does not mean that financial implications cannot be 
considered.  In determining whether to grant a commercial vehicle request, this 
Board must determine whether alternatives such as another storage area or building 
a garage is practical or feasible.  In my opinion, if someone presents financial 
information relating to finding an alternative place to locate a vehicle, I think it is 
appropriate for the Board to consider financial information as far as the cost involved 
or the distance involved in making a determination whether or not the alternatives 
are practical or feasible. 

 

 Is there any limit as to how many times a permit can be granted? 
 
Mr. Motzny:  The Zoning Ordinance does not state a limit on the number of times 
one can apply for a commercial vehicle temporary use.  I think the intent of the 
Ordinance is that one could apply again after an approval lapses.  Arguably Section 
43.74.02 can be interpreted to mean that the Board may only grant a temporary 
approval for up to two years so that after the two years have elapsed, one cannot re-
apply.  However, this Board has the authority to make its own interpretation in 
administering the Zoning Ordinance, so if that question came up, this Board could 
interpret that Ordinance as it deems appropriate. 

 

 What constitutes evidence that a person seeking a permit has contacted an alternate 
secure storage for the vehicle? 
 
Mr. Motzny:  There is no clear answer.  In those cases where our office is required to 
defend in Circuit Court a Board of Zoning Appeals decision, we have to show the 
decision is supported by substantial, competent and material evidence on the 
record.  Such evidence may include testimony from the applicant that indicates 
practical and feasible alternatives to store a commercial vehicle were researched.  I 
do not believe swearing-in the applicant is necessary, as long as the information 
offered in support of the request is part of the public record.  I think it would be 
helpful to give an applicant a list of local storage areas from which quotes can be 
obtained and presented to the Board so it can use that information in determining 
whether efforts by the applicant reveal there are no feasible alternative locations for 
parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on November 9, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-11-073 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
There was no action taken on the October 26, 2010 Special/Study meeting minutes.  
Mr. Ullmann would like to include some discussion comments, of which he will 
forward in writing to the Planning Department. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

2 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 384) – Proposed LA Fitness, 1501 Maple Lane, South of 
Maple and West of Coolidge, Section 31, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Special Use and Preliminary 
Site Plan application for LA Fitness.  He specifically addressed parking.  Two traffic 
studies that were prepared, one by the petitioner‟s traffic consultant and the other 
by the City‟s traffic consultant, identified there is sufficient parking on site to 
accommodate the proposed use.  Mr. Branigan expressed support for the proposed 
parking deviation. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the site access and circulation.  He indicated the petitioner 
would be required to obtain a cross access easement to the proposed connection to 
Doyle Drive.  Mr. Branigan addressed a conflict between the two traffic studies with 
respect to whether a taper right turn lane should be required.   
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support of the proposal as submitted.  He recommended 
the Planning Commission grant the required parking modification, preliminary site 
plan and special use application with two conditions; one, the applicant provide 
documentation of a cross access easement to Doyle Drive prior to Final Site Plan 
approval; and two, resolve traffic analysis concerns in a manner acceptable to the 
City Engineer. 
 
There was a short discussion on the potential of the warehouse becoming a part of 
the health club in the future and the effect it would have on parking.  It was 
determined that such a significant change in the Special Use approval would require 
the applicant to come back before the Planning Commission. 
 
Victor Saroki of Victor Saroki and Associates, 430 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Saroki addressed the proposed 
building footprint, site circulation, landscaping and parking. 
 
Also present were Linden Nelson, property owner, and James Butler and Michael 
Labadie of Professional Engineering Associates. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the proposed tree islands would be irrigated. 
 
Mr. Butler replied in the affirmative. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-11-074 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed LA Fitness and warehouse 
space to 419 when a total of 970 spaces are required on the site based on off-
street parking space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 551-space reduction 
is justified through a comparison of parking spaces provided for similar uses in 
the area, as outlined in the Parking Analysis prepared by PEA and a report 
prepared by OHM. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval for the LA Fitness indoor commercial recreation facility, located on 
the south side of Maple and west of Coolidge (1501 Maple Lane), Section 31, 
within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Provide documentation of cross access easement to Doyle Drive prior to 
Final Site Plan Approval. 

2. Resolve traffic analysis concerns in a manner that is acceptable to the City of 
Troy Engineer. 

 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Saroki said they would like the primary entry off of Maple should they not be 
able to obtain a cross access easement to Doyle Drive. 
 
Mr. Motzny said it depends on the difficulty the petitioner might have obtaining a 
cross access easement whether the matter can be handled administratively, or if 
the petitioner would be required to come back before this Board.  He said it would 
be best to determine if and what the problem is, and then schedule a meeting to 
address the issue. 
 
Mr. Nelson stated he would like to strike the condition requiring a cross access 
easement from the Site Plan approval.  He said it is his first choice, as well as the 
tenant‟s, to obtain a cross access easement.  Mr. Nelson expressed concern with 
losing LA Fitness as a tenant should they not be able to obtain the cross access 
easement to Doyle Drive. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

4 
 

Chair Hutson acknowledged the uniqueness of the situation relating to the 
ownership of Doyle Drive.  He assured Mr. Nelson that the City would do everything 
it can to facilitate going forward with the proposal.   
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 965) – Proposed Alpha 
Dental Center, 405 E. Maple Road, Northeast Corner of Maple and Kirkton, Section 
27, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Preliminary Site Plan 
application for Alpha Dental Center.  He addressed the variances relating to the 
nonconforming setbacks that the petitioner is required to obtain prior to Preliminary 
Site Plan approval.  Mr. Branigan noted the photometric plan appears to exceed the 
minimum lighting limitation.  He indicated the concern could be addressed prior to 
Final Site Plan approval, or the petitioner might address it prior to coming back 
before the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support for the proposed project.  He recommended the 
Planning Commission take no action on the site plan this evening, to allow the 
applicant to pursue the required setback variances.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the building design and parking layout with respect 
to the existing trees on site.  Mr. Branigan said the design layout is the best 
possible, given the small property size.  Mr. Branigan confirmed there would be no 
berm on the north side. 
 
It was noted that the landscape plan appeared to have a label error on the types of 
trees provided. 
 
The petitioner, Dr. Carmelia Sandulache, was present.   
 
Chair Hutson stated the item would be scheduled on a Board of Zoning Appeals 
agenda. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE RE-WRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 

with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. – Article 4 District 
Regulations 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly followed up on a few items from last week‟s meeting: 

 Tree Preservation / Woodlands Protection. 

 Natural Features Protection Ordinance. 

 Incentives (point system). 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Branigan said the Planning Commission could consider addressing a Natural 
Features Protection Ordinance again, although he noted the task could potentially 
slow down the Zoning Ordinance re-write process.  Mr. Branigan believes there are 
appropriate tools in the new Zoning Ordinance to address natural features concerns 
and is comfortable moving forward. 
 
It was discussed whether a Natural Features Protection Ordinance and the Zoning 
Ordinance re-write could be worked on concurrently.  It was determined that the 
creation of a 2011 to-do list would be more strategic.  Items to study in the future 
are: 

 Electronic LED lighting for signs. 

 Stormwater management. 

 Natural features. 
 
Mr. Savidant noted that management determined it best not to include sign 
standards/regulations in the Zoning Ordinance.  He said the Planning Commission 
would have the ability to review and determine if proposed signage at the time of 
Preliminary Site Plan approval meets City standards. 
 
Mr. Branigan discussed Article 4 District Regulations and addressed the following: 

 Housekeeping items. 

 “Intent” sections revised and strengthened.  

 Adjustments to Schedule of Regulations. 
o Height regulation increase (residential). 
 Based on marketing trends. 
 Height in relation to fire precaution/suppression. 
 Across the board for all residential districts (R1-A to R1-E). 

o Overall revisions (non-residential). 
 Use categories. 
 „Accessory‟ use (revise term). 

 
Mr. Branigan briefly reviewed the items for discussion at a future study meeting; i.e., 
definition section, specific use regulations, entertainment and service type uses, 
restaurants permitted in O-1 (Office Building) district by right. 
 
Points to consider for allowing restaurants by right in the O-1 district: 

 Where O-1 abuts or is adjacent to residential. 

 Conformity of existing delicatessens in O-1. 
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

6 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Edmunds shared his experience in attending a training seminar offered through 
Michigan Municipal League, Tracking and Retaining Entrepreneurs. 
 
There was further discussion on the petitioner‟s presentation and aesthetics of the 
recently approved cellular tower located at Troy Lanes, 1950 E. Square Lake. 
 
There was discussion on Agenda item #5 on this evening‟s agenda, Special Use 
Approval and Preliminary Site Plan for LA Fitness (File Number SU 384), relating to 
reconsideration of the Resolution, with respect to the petitioner‟s comments after 
Site Plan approval. 
 
Mr. Motzny said it could have been possible for the Board to propose a Resolution 
indicating the condition of approval is the cross access easement with the further 
condition that if there is difficulty obtaining that easement, the Board could allow 
administrative approval to waive that requirement.  Mr. Motzny believes that absent 
such a provision in the Resolution, the matter would have to come back to the 
Planning Commission to remove that requirement.   
 
Chair Hutson acknowledged the difficulty of the situation, stated he does not want to 
lose LA Fitness either and would like to see the petitioner attempt to get the cross 
access easement.  If not, then the Board would revisit the matter.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:48 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\11-09-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on November 9, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-11-073 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
There was no action taken on the October 26, 2010 Special/Study meeting minutes.  
Mr. Ullmann would like to include some discussion comments, of which he will 
forward in writing to the Planning Department. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

2 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 384) – Proposed LA Fitness, 1501 Maple Lane, South of 
Maple and West of Coolidge, Section 31, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Special Use and Preliminary 
Site Plan application for LA Fitness.  He specifically addressed parking.  Two traffic 
studies that were prepared, one by the petitioner‟s traffic consultant and the other 
by the City‟s traffic consultant, identified there is sufficient parking on site to 
accommodate the proposed use.  Mr. Branigan expressed support for the proposed 
parking deviation. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the site access and circulation.  He indicated the petitioner 
would be required to obtain a cross access easement to the proposed connection to 
Doyle Drive.  Mr. Branigan addressed a conflict between the two traffic studies with 
respect to whether a taper right turn lane should be required.   
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support of the proposal as submitted.  He recommended 
the Planning Commission grant the required parking modification, preliminary site 
plan and special use application with two conditions; one, the applicant provide 
documentation of a cross access easement to Doyle Drive prior to Final Site Plan 
approval; and two, resolve traffic analysis concerns in a manner acceptable to the 
City Engineer. 
 
There was a short discussion on the potential of the warehouse becoming a part of 
the health club in the future and the effect it would have on parking.  It was 
determined that such a significant change in the Special Use approval would require 
the applicant to come back before the Planning Commission. 
 
Victor Saroki of Victor Saroki and Associates, 430 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Saroki addressed the proposed 
building footprint, site circulation, landscaping and parking. 
 
Also present were Linden Nelson, property owner, and James Butler and Michael 
Labadie of Professional Engineering Associates. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the proposed tree islands would be irrigated. 
 
Mr. Butler replied in the affirmative. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-11-074 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed LA Fitness and warehouse 
space to 419 when a total of 970 spaces are required on the site based on off-
street parking space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 551-space reduction 
is justified through a comparison of parking spaces provided for similar uses in 
the area, as outlined in the Parking Analysis prepared by PEA and a report 
prepared by OHM. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval for the LA Fitness indoor commercial recreation facility, located on 
the south side of Maple and west of Coolidge (1501 Maple Lane), Section 31, 
within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Provide documentation of cross access easement to Doyle Drive prior to 
Final Site Plan Approval. 

2. Resolve traffic analysis concerns in a manner that is acceptable to the City of 
Troy Engineer. 

 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Saroki said they would like the primary entry off of Maple should they not be 
able to obtain a cross access easement to Doyle Drive. 
 
Mr. Motzny said it depends on the difficulty the petitioner might have obtaining a 
cross access easement whether the matter can be handled administratively, or if 
the petitioner would be required to come back before this Board.  He said it would 
be best to determine if and what the problem is, and then schedule a meeting to 
address the issue. 
 
Mr. Nelson stated he would like to strike the condition requiring a cross access 
easement from the Site Plan approval.  He said it is his first choice, as well as the 
tenant‟s, to obtain a cross access easement.  Mr. Nelson expressed concern with 
losing LA Fitness as a tenant should they not be able to obtain the cross access 
easement to Doyle Drive. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

4 
 

Chair Hutson acknowledged the uniqueness of the situation relating to the 
ownership of Doyle Drive.  He assured Mr. Nelson that the City would do everything 
it can to facilitate going forward with the proposal.   
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 965) – Proposed Alpha 
Dental Center, 405 E. Maple Road, Northeast Corner of Maple and Kirkton, Section 
27, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Preliminary Site Plan 
application for Alpha Dental Center.  He addressed the variances relating to the 
nonconforming setbacks that the petitioner is required to obtain prior to Preliminary 
Site Plan approval.  Mr. Branigan noted the photometric plan appears to exceed the 
minimum lighting limitation.  He indicated the concern could be addressed prior to 
Final Site Plan approval, or the petitioner might address it prior to coming back 
before the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support for the proposed project.  He recommended the 
Planning Commission take no action on the site plan this evening, to allow the 
applicant to pursue the required setback variances.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the building design and parking layout with respect 
to the existing trees on site.  Mr. Branigan said the design layout is the best 
possible, given the small property size.  Mr. Branigan confirmed there would be no 
berm on the north side. 
 
It was noted that the landscape plan appeared to have a label error on the types of 
trees provided. 
 
The petitioner, Dr. Carmelia Sandulache, was present.   
 
Chair Hutson stated the item would be scheduled on a Board of Zoning Appeals 
agenda. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE RE-WRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 

with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. – Article 4 District 
Regulations 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly followed up on a few items from last week‟s meeting: 

 Tree Preservation / Woodlands Protection. 

 Natural Features Protection Ordinance. 

 Incentives (point system). 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 9, 2010 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Branigan said the Planning Commission could consider addressing a Natural 
Features Protection Ordinance again, although he noted the task could potentially 
slow down the Zoning Ordinance re-write process.  Mr. Branigan believes there are 
appropriate tools in the new Zoning Ordinance to address natural features concerns 
and is comfortable moving forward. 
 
It was discussed whether a Natural Features Protection Ordinance and the Zoning 
Ordinance re-write could be worked on concurrently.  It was determined that the 
creation of a 2011 to-do list would be more strategic.  Items to study in the future 
are: 

 Electronic LED lighting for signs. 

 Stormwater management. 

 Natural features. 
 
Mr. Savidant noted that management determined it best not to include sign 
standards/regulations in the Zoning Ordinance.  He said the Planning Commission 
would have the ability to review and determine if proposed signage at the time of 
Preliminary Site Plan approval meets City standards. 
 
Mr. Branigan discussed Article 4 District Regulations and addressed the following: 

 Housekeeping items. 

 “Intent” sections revised and strengthened.  

 Adjustments to Schedule of Regulations. 
o Height regulation increase (residential). 
 Based on marketing trends. 
 Height in relation to fire precaution/suppression. 
 Across the board for all residential districts (R1-A to R1-E). 

o Overall revisions (non-residential). 
 Use categories. 
 „Accessory‟ use (revise term). 

 
Mr. Branigan briefly reviewed the items for discussion at a future study meeting; i.e., 
definition section, specific use regulations, entertainment and service type uses, 
restaurants permitted in O-1 (Office Building) district by right. 
 
Points to consider for allowing restaurants by right in the O-1 district: 

 Where O-1 abuts or is adjacent to residential. 

 Conformity of existing delicatessens in O-1. 
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 





1

Tonni L Bartholomew

From: michelle2436@comcast.net
Sent: Thursday, November 18, 2010 8:59 AM
To: Tonni L Bartholomew
Subject: Thank You - Michelle Bray-Cotton

 
Dear Tonni, 
  
I apologise for the late reply but I have been finishing up school and I'm almost at the end of the 
semester so life has been hectic! 
But,  I wanted to say a very big thank you to you and your staff for letting me come into your office and 
help with the upcoming General Election. 
  
I found all your staff very helpful and so very friendly.  For the few hours that I was there I did learn a lot. 
  
Thank you once again. 
  
  
Michelle Bray-Cotton 
248 250 6041 
  
  

bartholotl
Text Box
N-03a



bartholotl
Text Box
N-05







bartholotl
Text Box
N-06





 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              November 29, 2010               
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
   
Subject: Niles-Barnard House Progress Report 
 

 
Background 
 
The Niles-Barnard House Project is proceeding on time and within budget. On Friday, November 12, 
2010, C & A House Movers lowered the house on to its new foundation. Since that date the moving 
skids have been removed and structural steel has been installed.  Gas service was installed on 
November 23. 
 
General Contractor Frank Rewold and Son Inc. reports that the basement floor will be poured and 
electrical service will be installed within two weeks. Once this work is completed, a temporary gas 
furnace will be installed in the basement and the site will be graded. The general contractor is 
confident that by December 30, 2010 the necessary carpentry repairs to the sill and siding skirt will be 
completed and a period cellar door and porch posts will be installed.  
 
The original house site on Livernois has been restored and inspected. The attorney for the Harriet 
Barnard Trust and Mr. Fred Barnard will obtain an independent house appraisal to determine the 
value of the gift and release the deed from escrow to the City of Troy. 
 
The Troy Historical Society Board of Trustees is delighted with the efficient progress of this project. 
The organization appreciates the suggestions and support provided by City staff and members of the 
community during the move. They are also grateful to the Troy Garden Club for the large holiday 
wreath which will hang on the central front door of the house during December. Battery-powered 
candles in each of the windows will glow each evening through the holiday season as a sign that the 
Historical Society continues to preserve history and heritage in the community. 
 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
The Niles-Barnard House relocation was financed solely by private donations collected since 2005 by 
the Troy Historical Society. 
 
 
 
LC\AGENDA ITEMS\11.30.10 – Nile-Barnard House Progress Report 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-07



 

 

1 
TLB/Agenda Item 12.06.2010/tlb 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
Date:   November 30, 2010 
 
To:   Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
 
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Subject: City Council Filing Deadline New State Law Implication 
 
 
Recently the Governor signed into law four amendments to Michigan Election Law. The 
amendment facilitates the implementation of PA 43 of 2010, establishing a 45-day 
absentee ballot delivery deadline for all elections. Public Act 44 of 2010, amending MCL 
168.644e, will be in effect for the next City Council election and supersedes the Troy 
City Charter Section 7.9, Nominations filing deadline.  
 
Election Law stipulates that the filing deadline for Partisan/Nonpartisan Candidates is 
4:00 PM on the 12th Tuesday prior to the odd-year November Election. The deadline for 
the November 8, 2011 Election will be Tuesday, August 16, 2011 at 4:00 PM. 
 
The Troy City Charter references the deadline as “the one hundredth (100th) day 
preceding the next election” and therefore the Charter will be administratively modified 
to contain a notation referencing the State Statute requirement which supersedes the 
Charter.  
 
The City Clerk’s office will include the new filing deadline in the Public Notice advertised 
in the newspaper of record and the City Council Candidate Filing Packets.  Additionally 
a notation will be included on the web page City Calendar and the Troy Today. 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-08



 

 

1 
TLB/Agenda Item 12.06.2010/tlb 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
Date:   December 2, 2010 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Certification of Edward Kempen Citizen Initiative Petition – Addition to the 

Troy City Ordinance  
 
 
The City Clerk’s office received a petition filing from Mr. Edward Kempen on Tuesday, 
November 9, 2010. The petition signatures have been verified by the City Clerk and 
found to be sufficient for petition certification. The Affidavit of Receipt of Petition Filing, 
Mr. Kempen’s petition cover letter, and the first page of the petition (page 1 of 64) are 
being forwarded pursuant to the following Charter requirement: “When a petition with 
sufficient signatures is filed within the time allowed by this section, the Clerk shall 
present the petition to the Council as its next regular meeting”. The petition, in its 
entirety (64 pages), is available electronically or in hard copy at the Clerk’s office.  

bartholotl
Text Box
N-09









 

 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: December 1, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
Subject: Project Update - Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number:  Z 236) 
 

 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) provided the Planning Department with 
an electronic version of the complete first draft of the Zoning Ordinance on November 23, 2010.  The 
Planning Department distributed the draft internally, including the City Attorney’s office, for an internal 
review of the document.   
 
The Planning Department will summarize the comments and forward to CWA.  CWA will be 
responsible for revising the first draft and preparing a Public Hearing Draft of the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance.  On December 30, 2010, the Public Hearing Draft will be distributed to City Council, 
Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals and posted on the City website for public review.  
This will meet the deadline established at the Special Joint City Council/Planning Commission 
Meeting on October 4, 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RBS\G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 236 Zoning Ordinance Rewrite\CC Agenda Item 12 06 10.docx 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-10



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 30, 2010 
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  James Nash, Financial Services Director    
 
Subject: Response to Council Member Mary Kerwin’s Inquiries about  
  Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as Related to  
  Salaries and Fringe Benefits   
 

 
Council Member Mary Kerwin asked for further clarification on the memo relative to staff salaries and 
fringe benefits dated November 18, 2010.  Specifically, she wanted clarification on the potential costs 
of vacation and sick leave, and inquired as to whether we are utilizing best governmental practices in 
accounting for this potential liability.  She further asked if other political jurisdictions also used this 
same practice. 
 
The City accounts for potential costs such as vacation and sick leave.  Please know that these costs 
are only incurred if vacation time and sick leave are not taken.  If vacation or sick time is taken, no 
additional financial liability over and above the employee’s base salary is incurred.   
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require all government entities to either:  1) Establish an 
Internal Service Fund; or 2) Record liabilities in the actual operating funds.  This means that all cities 
that compensate for unused sick and vacation time must account for it in one of the above fashions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\12.06.10 – Response to Inquiries about GAAP Relating to Salaries and Fringes 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-11



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
December 1, 2010 
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
Subject: Snow and Ice Control Policy 
 

 
On October 4, 2010 City Council approved the winter maintenance agreement with the Road 
Commission for Oakland County (RCOC).  This means that the City of Troy will plow snow at its 
historically signature high standards of having all roads cleared within 24 hours of the end of a four 
inch or greater snowfall; that is, until the $150,000 from RCOC to plow their roads runs out.  These 
roads consist of the following: 

 

• Adams 

• Big Beaver 

• Crooks 

• Dequindre 

• John R 

• Livernois 

• Long Lake 

• Maple 

• South Boulevard 
 
There was much discussion at the Council table on available options to handle snow and ice control 
for the entire 300+ mile system in the city of Troy once funding runs out from the RCOC on the above 
County roads.  One option was to ratchet down to the County level for County roads only and 
maintain the high level of service for City local and major roads until local funding runs out.  When will 
this occur?  It depends on how much snow we get. 
 
Please know that reducing the level of service to the RCOC standards for their roads while 
maintaining a high level of service for our roads presents a problem.  Here’s why.  The RCOC has a 
standard to treat their primary major roads (which may not include plowing to bare pavement) 
anywhere from two to four days after a four inch snow event.  And according to RCOC Director Brent 
Bair, it could be longer.  It is therefore problematic to plow local roads within 24 hours because in 
some areas of town, a resident will have a clear local road but will be unable to traverse a major road.  
As an example, someone living on Plaid Street in Section 16 could visit somebody living on 
Bonniebrook because the local streets are plowed, but would have a very difficult time indeed 
navigating the contiguous County roads of Long Lake and Livernois if they were not plowed. 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
O-01



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
So too, Troy would become the brunt of justified ridicule if a City snowplow truck would not plow snow 
on Big Beaver while en route to plow Dominique Street.  For the record, average daily volume traffic 
counts for Big Beaver in this area are over 65,000 versus Dominique with an average of 150 cars per 
day. 
 
Another option was to adhere to Troy’s high standard of snow and ice control until the money ran out 
from the RCOC.  Then, the entire city would have a level of service equal to the RCOC standard.  
This option has a risk.  If we have a year with many snow events, we’ll have excellent service for part 
of the winter, and poor service for rest of it.   
 
Given the above, we recommend a middle-of-the-road approach (no pun intended).  This approach 
would lower our level of service response on all roads from 24 hours to within 72 hours.  By doing this 
we think we can have a better allocation of resources and be more cost efficient and effective for the 
entire snow season.  On a seasonal basis, this should also yield better emergency vehicular 
response times. 
 
Assistant City Manager Mark Miller and DPW Director Tim Richnak will provide a PowerPoint 
presentation to further discuss this matter (attached). 
 
In addition, we have included a policy resolution for your consideration which you can adopt, modify 
or delay. 
 
As always, feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\12.06.10 – Snow and Ice Control Policy 



City of Troy
Snow and Ice Control 

Level of Service 

1



Consideration

 This presentation requests consideration for 
modified level of service for snow and ice control 
to provide uniformity in service levels over the 
entire 2010/2011 winter season on RCOC, City 
Major and Local Roads.

2



Level of Service 
Scenarios

City of Troy Historical 
Level of Service

City of Troy / RCOC 
Funding Controlled

City of Troy/RCOC 
Modified

RCOC Level of 
Service

3



Table of Level of Service
City of Troy Historical 

Level of Service 
City of Troy / RCOC
Funding Controlled

Level of Service

City of Troy / RCOC
Modified 

Level of Service

RCOC 
Level of Service

Road Segments /Truck
Each Road Segment 

multiple lanes  
6 miles in Length

1 Road Segment  1 Road Segment  
Increased to

3+ Road Segments

2 Road Segments 3+ Road Segments

Pavement Condition Bare Pavement Bare Pavement
Increased to

¼” Slush to BareWheel 
Tracks

Bare Wheel Tracks BareWheel Tracks to ¼” Slush 

Local Roads Hills 
Intersections and Curves

Snow Events ½” to 4”

Treated after 
RCOC/ City Major  

Completed

Delayed Treatment after 
City Major Level of  
Service Shifted to 

Funding Controlled 
Level of Service

Delayed Treatment after 
RCOC/City Major 

Completed

Delayed Treatment after 
RCOC/City Major 

Completed

Local Roads Plowed
Snow Events Over 4”

24 Hours 24 Hours
Shifted to

72+ Hours

24 to 72 Hours 72+ Hours

Police Department
Request for Service 

I-75

Response by 
City of Troy Staff

Response by
City of Troy Staff Shifted 

to RCOC

Response by 
City of Troy Staff

Response by 
RCOC

4



City of Troy Jurisdictional Road Map

5



City of Troy 
Snow and Ice Control

Current Level of Service

 24 hour Operation 
◦ One Truck for each of 14 RCOC Roads and City Major Segments
◦ RCOC Roads, City Major Roads, and School Entry Roads are maintained to 

bare pavement.
◦ Local Roads receive treatment of Hills, Intersection and Curves (HICs) when 

RCOC Roads, Major Roads and School Entry Roads  have been completed.
◦ Snow events over 4 inches trigger city wide plowing of local roads with a goal 

to have all local streets plowed within 24 hours after the snow stops falling.
◦ Police Department request for emergency service on I-75 are responded to by 

City of Troy Street Division staff to events over and above those that naturally 
occur. 

6



City of Troy / RCOC
Snow and Ice Control

Funding Controlled Level of Service

 The City of Troy higher level of service will be maintained on all 
RCOC, City Major, and Local Road segments until the RCOC 
funding is exhausted. At that point in time all RCOC, City Major, 
and Local Road  segment would have service levels reduced to 
RCOC standards. 
◦ Police Department requests for emergency service on I-75 will 

also be shifted to the RCOC instead of  City of  Troy Street 
Division Staff. 

7



City of Troy / RCOC
Snow and Ice Control

Modified Level of Service

 The target for a modified level of service would be to set service 
levels to the extent that the funding would be exhausted at winters 
end.

 To the degree that the weather can be predicted over 5 months of 
winter,  modifications to the level of service will need to be adjusted 
on a continual basis.

8



City of Troy / RCOC
Snow and Ice Control

Modified Level of Service continued

 Significant areas of reduction of level of service from the City of Troy to a 
modified level of service would include the following:
◦ The number of road segments that each truck would be responsible for on RCOC 

Roads, City Major Roads, and School Entry Roads would be doubled depending on 
the snow event.

◦ The RCOC Roads, City Major Roads and School Entry Roads pavement condition 
during the storm event would be maintained to bare wheel tracks and not wet 
pavement.

◦ Local Roads receive treatment of Hills, Intersection and Curves (HICs) when 
RCOC Roads, City Major Roads and School Entry Roads  have been completed.

◦ Snow events over 4 inches trigger city wide plowing of local roads with a goal to 
have all local roads plowed within 24 to 72 hours after the snow stops falling.

◦ Police Department request for emergency service on I-75 will be responded to by 
City of Troy Street Division staff. 

9



RCOC
Snow and Ice Control

Level of Service

◦ The number of road segments that each truck would be responsible for would 
be tripled or more depending on the snow event.
◦ The RCOC Roads, City Major Roads and School Entry Roads pavement 

condition during the storm event would be maintained  with ¼” of slush to 
bare wheel tracks.
◦ Local Roads receive treatment of Hills, Intersection and Curves (HICs) when 

RCOC Roads, City Major Roads and School Entry Roads  have been 
completed.
◦ Snow events over 4 inches trigger city wide plowing of local roads with a goal 

to have all local roads plowed 72+ hours after the snow stops falling.
◦ Police Department request for emergency service on I-75 will be responded to 

by RCOC staff. 

10



RCOC
Snow and Ice Control

Level of Service

◦ More expensive snow removal rental equipment including 
operators used for local road plowing would be restricted or 
eliminated from the operation.

Equipment Contractor Rate City Rate City Labor City Equipment
Road Grader $150 $74 $34 $40
Front End Loader $135 $65 $34 $31
Single Axle Truck $120 $63 $34 $29
w/10 ft plow
Pickup w/8 ft plow          $85 $46 $34 $12

11



Questions and Discussion

12



bartholotl
Text Box
O-02




	AGENDA: December 6, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	INVOCATION: Pastor Edward Petreaca of the Seventh Day Adventist Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled
	a) Proclamation Presentation Honoring Judge Michael A. Martone


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson
	E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Silk Route Global, LLC at 950 Stephenson
	E-3 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks
	E-4 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for P3 North America, Inc., at 1957 Crooks, Suite B

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Cancelation of December 20, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting
	I-5 2010/11 Budget Amendment No. 1
	I-6 Bid Waiver – Michigan CAT Mini Excavator
	I-7 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – Cities of Rochester and Oak Park

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: Proclamation to Honor Judge Michael A. Martone
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal Services – Fire Stations and Training Center
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend City Funds – MMRMA Risk Avoidance Program Grant – TASER Purchase
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award-Sole Bidder – Vehicle Wash Services

	J-5 Application to Transfer Interest and Location of MLCC Class C License No. 9432-2010 from Rockers, Inc. located at 1461 N. Perry, Pontiac, Michigan to Square Lake Diner, LLC to be located at 6024 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan, pending final inspec...
	J-6 Application for New SDM License with On Premise Seating for Target Corporation
	J-7 Application to Add Space (additional indoor seating) for RCSH, LLC (Ruth’s Chris Steak House)
	J-8 Application to Transfer Stock Interest for Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. – Somerset Mall
	J-9 Application to Transfer Stock Interest for Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. – Oakland Mall

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Contract to Transfer Ownership and Responsibility – ALOeTERRA Solar House


	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2010
	b) Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2010
	c) Planning Commission/Final – November 9, 2010

	N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted
	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation from Michelle Bray-Cotton, Thanking the Clerk’s Office for their Assistance in her Community Service Assignment

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2010
	N-6  Communication: State of Michigan-Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of  the Detroit Edison Company–Case No. U-15806
	N-7  Memorandum: Niles-Barnard House Progress Report
	N-8  Memorandum: City Council Filing Deadline New State Law Implication
	N-9  Memorandum: Certification of Edward Kempen Citizen Initiative Petition – Addition to the Troy City Ordinance
	N-10  Memorandum: Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number: Z-236)
	N-11  Memorandum: Response to Council Member Mary Kerwin’s Inquiries About Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as Related to Salaries and Fringe Benefits

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Snow and Ice Control Policy
	O-2  Goals and Objectives

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  Raquel Chidiac v. City of Troy et. al.

	Q. ADJOURNMENT


	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 200000
	2: 200000

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor  CMAE IV #6345

	Reset: 


